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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 148th Annual General Meeting of the Members of ARCUTTIPORE TEA 

COMPANY LIMITED will be held on Monday, the 25th day of September, 2017 at 3.00 pm at MMS Chamber, 4A 

Council House Street, Kolkata – 700001, to transact the following businesses: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements consisting of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 

2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, the 
Report of Auditors thereon and the Report of Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended 31st 

March, 2017. 

 

2. To appoint Mr. Shalakya Kumar Bajoria (DIN- 00893170) as Director who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re- appointment. 

 

3. To appoint Mr. Naresh Shah (DIN: 00893162) as Director who retires by rotation and being eligible offers 

himself for re- appointment. 
 

4. To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration  
 

To consider and if thought fit and proper to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 & 142 and Other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014, including any amendment, modification or 
variation thereof, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, MRK 

Associates, Chartered Accountants and having Firm Registration No.007726C, be and are hereby appointed as the 

Auditors of the Company in place of the retiring Auditor M/s Gora & Company, Chartered Accountant (FRN 

No.327183E) for a period of 5 years to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of the 153th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2022, to examine and audit the 

account of the Company, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors”.       
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of MRK Associates, Chartered Accountants, as the Auditor of the 

Company shall be subject to the ratification by the Members of the Company at every subsequent Annual General 
Meeting (as applicable under the Companies Act, 2013) held after this meeting”. 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (which term includes a duly constituted committee of the 

Board of Directors) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be considered 
necessary, desirable and expedient to give effect to this Resolution and/or otherwise considered by them to be in the 

best interest of the Company”.    

       By Order of the Board  
For ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED 

 

 

Kolkata                           HARSH KUMAR BAJORIA (DIN: 00893180) 
Dated 30th May, 2017          (Managing Director) 

Phone -033-6540-6001 
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NOTES: 

 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 

and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The 

instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective must be deposited at the Registered 

Office of the Company, not less than forty – eight hours before the commencement of the Annual 

General Meeting. 

A person can act as a Proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate 

shares not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company. 

 

2. Corporate Members/AOPs are required to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board 

Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representative 

to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

3. Pursuant to the Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Register of Members and Share 

Transfer Book of the Company shall remain closed from Tuesday 19th September, 2017 to 

Monday 25th September, 2017 (both days inclusive). 

 

4. (i) A person, whose name is recorded in the Registrar of Members or in the Register of 

Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off-date i.e. 25th August 2017 

only shall be entitled. 

 

(ii) Persons, who have acquired Shares and become Members or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off-date i.e. 25th August 2017 only shall be 

entitled to avail the facility of either remote e-Voting at the AGM through Ballot Paper. 

 

5. The Notice of the Meeting will also be available on the Company’s website 

www.arcuttiporetea.co.in and the website of National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) at 

www.evotingindia.com. 

 

6. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify change of address, if any, 

along with address proof i.e. self attested copy of Voter Identity Card, Electricity/Telephone Bill, 

Driving License or a copy of the passport, Aadhaar Card and Bank Statement to the Share 

Department of the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and, in case the shares are 

held in dematerialized form, then this information should be passed on to the respective 

Depository Participants and not to the Share Department of the Company / Registrar and share 

Transfer Agent. 

 

7. In case the mailing address mentioned on the envelope of this Annual Report is either without 

Pin Code or with incorrect Pin Code, Members are requested to advise the correct Pin Code to 

the Share Department of the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or the 

respective Depository Participant(s) as the case may be, immediately, for speedier delivery of 

documents in future. 

 

8. (a) Members desirous of receiving Notices and/or documents from the Company through the 

electronic mode are requested to update their email addresses with their Depository 

Participants, where shares are held in electronic form or with the Share Department of the 

Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent where shares are held in physical form. 

 

http://www.arcuttiporetea.co.in/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(b) Email addresses of Members as advised to the Share Department of the 

Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent where shares are held in physical mode or 

registered with Depositories where shares are held in the electronic mode are deemed to the 

Member’s registered Email addresses for serving Company’s documents/notices. Members 

intending to refresh/update their email addresses should do so as soon as possible. 

 

(c) Members who hold shares in electronic form and who have not registered their e-mail 

addresses so far are requested to register their email IDs with their Depository Participants. 

Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to intimate the Share Department of 

the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for faster communication.  

 

9. Members holding Shares, in physical form, in identical order of names in more than one Folio, 

are requested to write to the Share Department of the Company / Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent enclosing the relevant Share Certificates requesting consolidation of such Folios 

into one Folio for their own convenience. 

 

10. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2016-17 and Notice of the aforesaid AGM, inter alia, 

indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is 

being sent to all such members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 

Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of 

the same. For members who have not registered their email IDs, physical copies of the Annual 

Report 2016-17, Notice of the AGM along with Attendance Slip, Electronic Voting Particulars 

and Proxy Form is being sent at their registered addresses. 

 

11. As per the provisions of the Act, the facility for making/varying/cancelling nominations is 

available to individuals holding shares in the company. Nominations can be made in Forms-

SH.13 and any variation/ cancellation thereof can be made by giving notice Form 

SH14.prescibed under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (as amended) 

for the purpose. The Forms can be obtained from the Share Department of the 

Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agents or from the Website of Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs at www.mca.gov.in. 

 

12. a) Members desirous of getting any information in relation to the Company’s Annual 

Report 2016-17 are requested to address their query (ies) well in advance, i.e. at least 10 

days before the Meeting, to the Company to enable the Management to keep the 

information readily available at the Meeting. 

 

b) Members holding shares in Electronic Form, are requested to bring their Depository ID 

Number and Client ID Number to facilitate their identification or recording attendance at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

 

13. As per Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) circular no MRD/ Dop/ Cir-05/2009 dated 

May 20, 2009, it has become mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN card for registration of transfer 

of shares in physical form. 

 

14. As per requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, particulars relating to appointment and reappointment of Directors are given in the 

Corporate Governance Section of the Annual Report and forms the part of this Notice. 



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

15. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-

mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. 

form the Company electronically. 

 

16. Voting through electronic means 

As per Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and 

Administration) Amendment Rules, 2014 as amended vide Companies (management and 

Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 effective 19th March, 2015 and Regulation 44  of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

 
i) The items of business set out in the attached Notice are to be transacted also through the 

electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the meeting (“remote e – 

voting”) under an arrangement with National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL“), as 

specified more fully in the instructions under Serial No 17, provided that once the vote on a 

Resolution is cast, a Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote 

again. 

 

ii) The facility for voting through ballot paper shall also be made available at the Annual 

General Meeting and members attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote by 

remote e voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting. 

 

iii) The members who have cast their vote by remote e – voting prior to the meeting may also 

attend and participate in the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 

17. The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under: 

 

(i) The voting period begins on Friday, 22nd September, 2017 from 09:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on 

Sunday 25th September, 2017 5:00 p.m.(IST) During this period shareholders’ of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date of 18th September, 2017 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be 

disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 

(iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab. 

(iv) Now, select “ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO. LTD.” from the drop down menu and click on 

“SUBMIT” 

(v) Now Enter your User ID: 

a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps give below. 

 
For Members holding shares in Demat Form and in Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 

both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in 

the PAN field. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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 In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before 

the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is 

Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field-Sequence 

number is communicated in the Covering Letter. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the 

said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format. 

Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company 

records for the said demat account or folio. 

Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not 

recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id/folio number in the 

Dividend Bank details field. 

 

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 

menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 

field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 

opts for e-voting through NSDL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 

password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for “ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED” on which you choose 

to vote. 

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 

IMPLIES THAT YOU ASSENT TO THE Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent 

to the Resolution. 

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.  

(xiv) After selecting the Resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “CLICK HERE TO 

PRINT” option on the Voting page. 

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the 

image verification code and click on “FORGOT PASSWORD” & enter the details as 

prompted by the system. 

(xviii) Note for Institutional Shareholders 

  Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on 

to http://www.evoting.nsdl.co.in and register themselves as Corporates. 

  A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

  After receiving the login details they have to create a user who would be able to link the 

account(s) which they wish to vote on. 

  The list of accounts should be mailed to www.evoting.nsdl.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

  A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 

the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.co.in/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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(xx) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share of the paid up equity 

share capital of the Company 

(xxi) The results of voting will be announced at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be 

held at 4A, Council House Street, 1st Floor, Kolkata - 700001 on 25th September 2017 at 3 

pm. The results of the voting will be communicated to the BSE and also be hosted on the 

website of the company www.arcuttiporetea.co.in 

(xxii) In case of members receiving the physical copy, they are advised to follow all steps from 

serial no. (i) to (xvi) above. 

 

18. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-

voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. 

 

19. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off-date. 

 

20. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 28th August, 2017 has 

appointed Mr. Atish Kumar Shaw, Practicing Chartered Accountant (Membership No.306098) of 

A. K. Shaw (Proprietor) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in fair and 

transparent manner, whose e-mail address is: atish.shaw@gmail.com. 

 

21. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on which voting is 

to be held, allow voting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of Ballot Paper for all those 

Members who are present at the AGM and have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-

Voting facility. 

 

22. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the 

Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting in the presence of at least 

two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of 

the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or 

against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign 

the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

23. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 

Company and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the 

Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be simultaneously 

communicated to the Stock Exchange. 

 

24. On receipt of the requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed 

on the date of the AGM. 

 

25. The Landmark and Route Map of the venue of the AGM is given on the back side of the 

Attendance Slip in the Annual Report 2016-17. 

   

      By Order of the Board  

For ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED 

 

 

Kolkata     HARSH KUMAR BAJORIA 

      (DIN: 00893180) 

Dated 30th May, 2017   (Managing Director) 

http://www.arcuttiporetea.co.in/
mailto:atish.shaw@gmail.com
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Annexure “A”  

 

Details of Directors seeking re- appointment at the 148th Annual General Meeting of the Company (Pursuant 

to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement) 

 

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing agreements with the stock exchanges, following information is 

furnished about the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed. 

 

1) Mr. Shalakya Kumar Bajoria is a Executive Non-Independent Director on the Board of the Company 

since 01.02.2011 He is a B.com Graduate and has around 19 years experience in Administration work. He is 

holding 340370 shares in the Company. He is related to other Directors of the Company. 

 

Other Directorships Other Committee Memberships 

Name of Company Name of Committee 

Pusha Steels Ltd. 

Atlantica Exim Ltd. 

Leader Construction Pvt. Ltd. 

Duckback Waterproof Works Pvt. Ltd. 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

 

2) Mr. Naresh Shah is a Non Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company since 

07.10.2011 He is a B.com Graduate and has around 30 years experience in Administration work. He is 

holding NIL shares in the Company. He is not related to other Directors of the Company. 

 

Other Directorships Other Committee Memberships 

Name of Company Name of Committee 

Fastrack Realestate Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 

Devesh Trade Credit Pvt. Ltd. 

Devesh Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Sureka Commodities & Securities Pvt. Ltd. 

Mitsubishi Trading Pvt. Ltd. 

Indian Asphalts Pvt. Ltd. 

Rajhans Vincom Pvt. Ltd. 

Star Textiles & Industries Ltd. 

Atlantica Exim Ltd. 

Durgesh Iron & Steel Pvt. Ltd. 

Acme Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. 

Pusha Steels Ltd.  

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

 

 

The disclosures as required under section II, part II of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

 

ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED 

4A, Council House Street, M.M.S Chambers, 1st Floor, 

Kolkata – 700001 

CIN: L15491WB1900PLC000220 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

 

Your Directors present their 148th Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements 

for the year ended 31st March 2017. 

Financial Summary                                                               Amount in Rs. 

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 

Profit/ (Loss) before depreciation 1,26,157 24,82,002 

Provision for depreciation  19,75,995 16,21,273 

Profit/ (Loss) after depreciation (18,49,838) 8,60,729 

Provision for Taxation (for earlier year) (3,86,857) 1,61,990 

Profit / (Loss) after tax (22,36,695) 6,98,739 

Add:(Loss) Brought forward from previous year        (12,28,80,826) (12,35,79,565) 

Transfer to Balance Sheet  (12,51,17,521) (12,28,80,826) 

Profit  available for appropriation  Nil Nil 

 

Dividend  

In view of accumulated losses, no dividend is recommended for the Financial Year under 

reference and no transfer is proposed to be made to Reserves. 

Share Capital  

The Company has not issued, during the year, any shares with or without differential voting 

rights, granted stock options or issued sweat equity shares. The Paid up Share Capital of the 

Company as on 31st March, 2017 is Rs. 530.83 lakhs 

Operations and General View   

Green Leaf & Made Tea 

Your company has produced 19,25,369 kgs of green leaf in the year 2016-17 as compared to 

production of green leaf of 19,53,553 kgs, in the year 2015-16, resulting in a marginal drop of 

production of 28,184 kgs as there had been erratic climate and undistributed rain in the year. 

This cause had brought down deep fall in green leaf production against budgeted production of 

21,50,000 kgs for the year.  This year too, your company has inducted private funds and also 
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internal accruals in the operation to achieve better production of green leaf and correspondingly 

good quality of tea made production in years to come. Your Company has made capital 

investment of Rs.16,58,993/-as compared to Rs.52,63,058/-in previous year in land development 

and machineries. There has been continuous endeavor to take the company out from the 

financial crisis. As against this year’s Green leaf production (including bought leaf of 1,83,490 

kgs,), your company has manufactured 4,87,519 kgs of tea (inclusive of 37,587 kgs on bought 

leaf) as compared to 4,39,907 kgs. in the previous year.  Efforts are being made to increase in 

recovery and improvement in quality of made tea so that better margins on sale of its tea product 

could be reaped in this competitive domestic market.   

It is pleasure to mention state that your company has been regular in payment of stipulated old 

statutory dues and meeting increasing labour dues, amenities to staff and production overheads.     

In order to reduce cost of production at the initial period of season, your company has 

contemplated to enhance made tea production in such initial period with bought leaf.   

Performance  

Your Directors report that the Company has made marginal cash profit during the year, against 

the continuous erosion of net worth of the company in the current year too.  The company has 

written back liabilities amounting Rs.41,31,340/- during the year.  Your company has not 

obtained their entitlements of subsidy on plantation for the current period.    

Future Prospects  

Your Directors observe that there are ups and downs in demand of tea in the domestic market as 

well as in overseas markets in the current season. Your Directors contemplate that your 

company would be able to produce good quality of tea as well as higher production of tea with 

good quality so that it would sustain higher margins to meet cost of production and incidental 

overheads. It is stated that necessary steps are being taken  for manuring the garden, and repairs 

of machineries and  repairs of factory buildings and capital investment in machineries so that 

there be improvement in  production of green leaf and better recovery of made tea and of quality 

tea.  

Your company is targeting to achieve positive results in the current season provided there would 

have been production of green leaf as per estimations. The company does not have any 

subsidiary or joint venture / associate companies. 
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Directors Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)( c) of the Companies Act 2013 and based upon representation of 

Management, the Board, to the best of its knowledge and belief, states that: 

(a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) it has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2017 and of the loss of the 

Company for the financial year ended on that. 

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

(e)       the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 

and such controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 

(f)       the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively ; 

Auditors Report / Secretarial Audit Report  

The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors Report are self explanatory and 

need no further explanations in this regard. Certain observations made in the Secretarial 

Audit Report are self explanatory and the same need no further explanations in this 

regard. 

Corporate Governance And Management Discussion & Analysis 

A separate Report on ‘Corporate Governance’ together with a Certificate from the Practising 

Company Secretary on Compliance thereof and a Certificate from the Company’s CEO pursuant 

clause 49 of the Listing agreement are attached as Annexure I of this Annual Report. 

The “Management Discussion & Analysis” is attached as Annexure II to this Annual report. 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

The Board confirms that it has the required number of Independent Directors as envisaged under 

Section 149(4) of the Act and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company 

confirming that they meet with the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149 (6) 
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of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b)(vi) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

Mr. Shalakya Kumar Bajoria (DIN: 00893170) retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and an appropriate resolution has also been 

included as part of the Notice convening the forth coming Annual General Meeting. His brief 

profile is given in the Report on Corporate Governance.  

 

Mr. Naresh Shah (DIN: 00893162) retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and an appropriate resolution has also been included 

as part of the Notice convening the forth coming Annual General Meeting. His brief profile is 

given in the Report on Corporate Governance. 

In compliance with Section 203 of the Act, Shri Harsh Kumar Bajoria, as Chief Executive 

Officer & Managing Director is appointed as Key Managerial Personnel during the under 

reference. There is no Chief Financial Officer appointed by the Company. 
 

Mr. Harsh Kumar Bajoria, CEO & the Managing Director of the company, has informed that in 

view of loss in the year, he has forgone his remuneration for the year and has decided to 

continue rendering his services as CEO & Managing Director as he had been rending services in 

earlier years even without remuneration.  
 

Mr. Shalakya Bajoria, Executive Director of the company, has informed that in view of loss in 

the year, he has forgone his remuneration for the services to the company for the year and has 

decided to continue rendering his services as Executive Director as he had been rending services 

in earlier years. 
 

The company took on record the appreciations of services rendered by both Mr. Harsh Kumar 

Bajoria and MR. Shalakya Bajoria Executive Director during the year and their continued 

support. However, renewal of the letter of appointment and remuneration of Mr. Harsh Kumar 

Bajoria as Managing Director of the company and the requisites compliances in this regard 

under the provisions of the Companies Act with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal, are 

pending.   
 

Evaluation of performance of Board and its Committees 

In compliance with the provisions of the Act and Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has evaluated its own 

performance during the year under report along with that of its various Committees and its 

individual Directors. The Independent Directors also reviewed the performance of the Non – 

Independent Director of the Company. 
 

Number of Board Meetings 

The Board met six times during the financial year 2016-17. Details of Meetings and the 

attendance of each Director is provided in the Report on Corporate Governance. 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company   
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The Company has in place a formal Nomination and remuneration Policy pursuant to Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the text of the policy is disclosed in the Corporate 

Governance Report. Annexure III 

Audit committee 

The Board’s Audit Committee comprises Sri C.P. Poddar and Sri Naresh Shah. During the year 

under the report, there were no disagreements whatsoever between the audit Committee and the 

Board. 

 

Related Party Transactions 

 

All related party transactions that were entered during the Financial Year were on an arm’s 

length basis and in the ordinary course of business and provisions of section 188 of the Act were 

not attracted. Hence, the disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required to be given.   

There were no materially significant related party transactions made during the period under 

review by the Company with promoters, Directors or other designated persons which could have 

potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. Necessary disclosure regarding 

transactions with related parties has been made in the Notes to the Audited Accounts. 

Pursuant to Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, Related Party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for 

approval. Where required, prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for 

continuous transactions and the corresponding actual transactions are reviewed at subsequent 

Audit Committee Meetings. 

 

The company has no Related Party Transactions policy that is to be given on the website of the 

company under the head investors corporate Governance. 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 

(i) The Company has given interest free advances given in the nature of loan to some of 

companies covered under provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013. The 

amount of Interest free advances given in the nature of loan is Rs. 5,10,568/- are as on 

31st March, 2017. The purpose was to utilize the advances amount for their general 

business purposes. 

 

(ii) The loan and advances given to employees are Rs 1,87,504/- as on 31.03.2017 and the 

same are being covered under the remuneration policy of the company.  Hence, Section 

186 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable. 

 

(iii) The company has not provided any guarantee nor made any investment cover U/S 186 of 

the Act during the year under Report. 
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(iv) The details of the investments made by the company in earlier years are given in the 

notes of the financial statements. 

 

Fixed Deposit 

The company has not accepted deposits excepting loan of Rs.95,00,000/- from an individual 

during the financial year 2016-17. 

 
 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives   

The Company does not meet the criteria specified in Section 135 of the Act requiring it to 

constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and formulate a policy for this purpose.  
. 

Whistle Blower Policy 

In compliance with the provisions of section 177 (9) of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing 

Agreement with CSE and Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations  and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has not  codified whistle Policy which is to be 

hosted on its website (www.arcuttiporeteaco.co.in)  
 

Statutory Auditors 

As per Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 pursuant to the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company and its Board of Directors MRK 

Associates, Chartered Accountants having registration no.007726C, are appointed as the Auditor 

of the Company in place of retiring auditor M/s Gora & Company, Chartered Accountants, 

(Registration No. 327183E ), for a period of 5 years subject to the approval of the shareholders 

in the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on 25th September, 2017, and further 

subject to ratification by shareholders at every AGM of the company, on the remuneration and 

other terms and conditions as may be fixed by the Board of Directors.   

M/S MRK Associates, Chartered Accountant, have given their consent to the Company that their 

appointment satisfies the criteria prescribed in Section 141 of the Act and are not disqualified for 

appointment.  

The Board recommends for ratification by the shareholders regarding their appointment. 

Cost Auditor  

As the manufacturing activities of the Company is below the threshold limit per  Notification 

dated 30th June, 2014 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,  the 

company is not required to maintain cost record, and no cost auditor u/s 148 of the company Act 

2013 was appointed.     
 

Secretarial Audit 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Company Act, 2013, read with the Companies 

(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 The Board has appointed  
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B.K. BARIK & ASSOCIATES Company secretary in practice to audit the secretarial records of 

the Company in respect of the Financial Year 2016-17.  

The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is attached in Annexure IV to this Report. 

Risk management and Significant Orders  

The management is continuously endeavouring to deal with perceived risks in its business by 

indentifying and evaluating business risks and opportunities. This year, the tea garden has 

caused business loss. In the opinion of the Board, the risk involved due to that may threaten the 

existence of the company. 

During the year under Report, there are no significant and material orders passed by Regulators 

or Courts or Tribunals impacting the company’s going concern status and its future opereations.  

Internal Control Systems 

The company has adequate system of internal control commensurate with the size and nature of 

business. Procedures are in place to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against 

loss, all transactions are authorized, recorded and appropriately reported. The internal control 

system is monitored and evaluated by the Management, which interacts with the Audit 

Committee.  

Energy, Technology & Foreign Exchange  

The information pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 

Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is stated in Annexure V attached 

herewith this report. There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under review and 

details of Outgo are given in the accounts. 

Particulars of Employees  

Particulars as required under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 are not given, as no employee of the 

Company falls under the prescribed category.  

Disclosure Under Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace 

Following implementation of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, a summary of complaints received or disposed of during the 

Financial Year 2016-17 have been provided as under:- 

No. of Complaints received          Nil 

No. of complaints disposed off          Nil 
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Extract From Annual Return  

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual return in form MGT 9 as required under 

section 92 of the Act are given as Annexure VI to this Report. 
 

Miscellaneous  

1. Industrial Relations: 

During the year under review, the Company enjoyed cordial relationship with the 

workers and employees at all levels. 

Annexures forming Part of this Report 

Annexure Particulars 

I Report on Corporate Governance together with Certificate from Auditor on 

compliance thereof and  CEO  certification 

II Management Discussion & Analysis 

III Nomination and Remuneration mentioned in Annexure I 

IV Secretarial Audit Report 

V Information  pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption 

and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

VI Extracts from the Annual Return to be filed by the Company in Form MGT 9 
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ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO. LTD.       Annexure - I 

Corporate Governance Report  

1. Governance Philosophy 

The Company ‘s philosophy on governance is founded upon and structured on a rich legacy of 

principles and practices that predicates dealings with stakeholders based transparency, 

Professionalism, Accountability, Fairness and social responsibility. It is continuous endeavor of 

the Company to fulfill these objectives and enhance the wealth generating capacity, keeping in 

mind long term interest of the stakeholders. 

2. Board of Directors: - 

Composition of the Board, Directorships and Committee positions held in other companies 

and shares held as on 31
st
 March 2017 

 

i) As on 31st March 2017, the Board consists of 5 (Five) Directors. The composition of the 

Board complies with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) and the Listing 

Agreement/ SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regulations) Regulations, 2015. Details of 

Compositions are given in table as follow. Their particulars and attendance at Board Meetings 

and AGM are given therein: 

Sl 

N

o 

Directors Category  Shares 

held 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

Attended 

Attenda

nce at 

the Last 

EGM/A

GM 

No of Other  Directorships    

 

Board of Directors Board Committee 

      Chairm

an 

Member Chairman Member 

 

** 

1 

 

Mr. 

H.K.Bajoria 

Executive 

Managing 

Director/ 

Promoter 

698887 6 Yes - 6 Nil Nil 

2 

 

Mr. Shalakya 

Bajoria 

Executive  

Non 

Independent   

340370 6 Yes - 4 Nil Nil 

3 

 

Smt. Pramila 

Bajoria 

Non Executive 

Women  

Independent  

1090615 6 Yes  Nil Nil Nil 

4 Mr. Naresh 

Shah 

Non Executive 

Independent  

Nil 4 Yes  12 Nil 1 

5 Mr. 

C.P.Poddar 

Non Executive  

Independent  

Nil 4 Yes  12 Nil 1 

** Only Member of Audit Committee pursuant to said Regulation 2015 
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ii) Attendance of Directors at meetings held during the Financial Year 2016-17 

Sl 

N0 

Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 May  30,                2016 5 5 

2 August 13,                2016 5 5 

3 September 3,            2016 5 5 

4 November 11,        2016 5 3 

5 December 8,      2016 5 5 

6 February 14,          2017 5 3 

 

No remuneration or commission was payable or paid to any director during the financial year 

2016-17. The payment of sitting fees has been waived.  

The non- Independent Director is subject to retire on rotation but being eligible, may be re-

appointed accordingly. 

iii) Information placed before the Board of Directors                                                             

As required under the clause 49 all the information were placed before the Board. 

iv) Code of Conduct  

The Company has a Code of Conduct applicable to all its Board Members and senior 

management executives for avoidance of conflict of interest between each of the above 

individuals and the Company. Each Board Member and senior management executive has to 

declare his compliance with the Code of Conduct as at the end of each Financial Year. The 

required declarations in respect of the Financial Year 2016-17 have been received from all Board 

Members and Key Managerial personnel (KMPs). There was no materially significant 

transaction during the Financial Year with Board Members and senior management executives, 

including their relatives that had or could have had a potential conflict of interest with the 

Company except disclosed otherwise at Note 27 of this Accounts Report. The Board designated 

the Managing Director as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) for the purpose of Corporate 

Governance. A declaration signed by the Managing Director as CEO in this regard is annexed at 

the end of this Report. 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE   

i) Terms of Reference & Composition: 

The terms of reference of the committee cover the matters specified for Audit Committee under 

Clause 49 of the listing Agreement  with BSE  and Regulation  18 of  SEBI(Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
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Composition, Name of Members and Chairman  

As on 31st March, 2017, the Audit Committee presently consists of the under noted persons as its 

members. The members are Non Executive Independent director   and Non Executive- independent 

director respectively  

Name of Director Date of meetings held 

during the financial year  

No of Meeting No. of  Meetings attended 

Sri C. P. Poddar  

Sri Naresh Shah 

30.05.2016 

13.08.2016 

11.11.2016  

and  

14.02.2017 

4 

4 

4 

 

4 

 

     4 

                       4 

                       4 

 

                       4                                                                          

 

There is no secretary appointed to the committee 
 

     ii) Brief Description of Terms of Reference  

The role of the Audit Committee and its Terms of reference comprised review of the operations, 

financial Management, Audit Plan, audited quarterly / half- yearly / annual returns, findings of 

internal / statutory auditors and compliance of the policy decisions of the company with all the 

powers and authorities as mentioned in Clause 49 of Listing Agreement with the BSE and / or 

the said SEBI Regulations from time to time. The Audit Committee also acts as a link between 

the Board of Directors and the Statutory / Internal Auditors. 

iii) Nomination and  Remuneration Committee 

The name of the existing Remuneration Committee was changed to ‘Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of Directors” pursuant to changes in Section 178 of the Act and the 

Listing Agreement. The Company does have such Remuneration Committee and as such, no 

meeting of the said Remuneration committee was held during the year.  

iv) Remuneration Policy  

The Remuneration Policy of the Company rewards performance based on achievement and 

existing industry benchmarks. The remuneration of the Managing Director is governed by the 

terms and conditions approved by the Board of Directors, the shareholders and the Centre 

Government, if required. The remuneration structure comprises of salary, perquisites and 

allowances, contribution to Provident Fund and gratuity as per Schedule XII and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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v) Remuneration of Directors 

 

Name of Director  

Category 

Sitting fee Paid Meeting 

For                   For 

Board               Committee 

 

Salary & 

Perks* 

Total 

Mr. H. K. Bajoria Executive Managing 

Director/Promoter 

- - - - 

Mr. Shalakya Bajoria Executive  Non 

Independent   

- -                - - 

Smt. Pramila Bajoria Non Executive Women  

Independent  

- -                - - 

Mr. Naresh Shah Non Executive 

Independent  

- -                - - 

Mr. C. P. Poddar Non Executive  

Independent  

- -                - - 

 

* Includes perquisites 

1. The Agreement with Mr. H. K. Bajoria, Managing Director is a period of 5 years which is still 

pending for renewal. 

2. The Company does not have any employee Stock Option scheme. 

3. The Company has not paid any remuneration to executive as well as non – executive directors. 

    vi)  Evaluation of Board’s performance:  

During the year, the Board has carried out the Annual performance evaluation of its own 

performance, its committees and individual Directors. The exercise was carried out through a 

structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as 

composition of the Board and committees, experience and competencies, performance of specific 

duties and obligations, governance issues, performance of individual Directors. The chairman of 

the Board was also evaluated on parameters such as attendance, contribution to meetings, and 

otherwise independent judgment, apart from the parameters mentioned earlier, etc. 

  vii)    Familiarization Programmes of Independent Directors  

The company has adopted familiarization programs for the Independent Directors by way of 

presentations on the required basis which includes all the activities and operations in which the 

company operates. Involvement of the experts is also made for better awareness and training of 

all the Directors. Factory visits are also organized from time to time. The Familiarization 

programs are not disclosed at the company’s website. www.arcuttiporetea.co.in 
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    viii)  Shareholders/ Investor’s Grievance Committee:  

The Committee presently consists of two persons one of whom is Sri C. P. Poddar, a Non 

executive Non independent Director and the other is Sri Monoranjan Pal. The grievances 

received from the shareholders were dealt with at its meetings. Sri Naresh Shah, a non executive 

Independent director, is the Compliance Officer of the Company. During the year, No Complaint 

was received from the shareholder during the year. All others have been resolved to date. The 

Company has no transfer pending at the close of the financial year.   

 

     ix)  Annual General Meeting / EGM 

The last 3 (Three) Annual General Meetings were held as follows. 

Year 

Ended 

Date of meeting Time Venue 

31.03.2017 

(EGM) 

02.01.2017 3.00 P.M. MMS Chamber  

         4A Council House Street  

                Kolkata—700001 

31.3.2016 (147th 

AGM) 

29.9.2016 3.00P.M. MMS Chamber  

         4A Council House Street  

                Kolkata—700001 

31.3.2015 (146th 

AGM) 

29.9.2015 3.00P.M. MMS Chamber  

         4A Council House Street  

                Kolkata—700001 

31.3.2014 (145th 

AGM) 

29.9.2014 3.00P.M. MMS Chamber  

         4A Council House Street  

                Kolkata—700001 

All the resolutions set out in the respective notices were passed by the shareholders. 

No postal ballots were used for voting at these meetings. 

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, there is no item on the agenda that needs approval 

by postal ballot. 

Special resolutions passed at EGM held on 02.01.2017: 

1. Regarding borrowing in excess of paid up capital and free reserves. 

2. Regarding creation of charge / mortgage on assets of the Company.  

 

    x)  Details of appointment / reappointment executive/non executive independent directors 

Mr. Shalakya Kumar Bajoria will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 

being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. 

The information pertaining to these directors as follows: 

Name of Director Mr. Shalakya Kumar Bajoria 

Age 43 years 
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Date of Appointment  01.02.2011 

Expertise In specific Functional Area He is a business man with extensive business 

experience in administration Also in business 

development and overall management. 

Qualification B.Com 

Chairman / Director of Other 

companies 

 Four 

Membership / Chairman ship in Other 

Board / committee 

Nil 

Equity Shares held in the company  340370 

 

Mr. Naresh Shah will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. 

The information pertaining to these directors as follows: 

Name of Director Mr. Naresh Shah 

Age 61 years 

Date of Appointment  07.10.2011 

Expertise In specific Functional Area He is a business man with extensive business 

experience in administration Also in business 

development and overall management. 

Qualification B.Com 

Chairman / Director of Other 

companies 

 Twelve 

Membership / Chairman ship in Other 

Board / committee 

Nil 

Equity Shares held in the company  Nil 

  

4) General Shareholder information. 

i) Annual General meeting – Date, Time, Venue. 

148th Annual general Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on Monday the 

September 25, 2017 at 3.00 P.M at MMS Chambers, 4A Council House Street, Kolkata 700001. 

ii) Date of Book closure. 

The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from September 19, 2017 to 

September 25, 2017 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General meeting of the 

Company. 

iii) Registered Office of the Company: 4A, Council House Street, Dewar's Garage, 1st Floor, 

Kolkata – 700 001. 
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iv) Registrar and Transfer Agents. 

M/s. MCS SHARE TRANSFER AGENT LIMITED, of 12/1/5 Monohar Pukur Road, Kolkata – 

700026 have been appointed as the Company’s RTA, including dematerialized segment. The 

company has been paying their dues as per agreement with said RTA to function as Share 

Transfer agent of the Company. 

v) Share Transfer System 

The Company shares are normally traded in the demat form for all category of shareholders. All 

transfers are debited/credited through the respective Accounts maintained with the Depository 

participants (DPs) of the investor and the shares are transferred within stipulated period of 30 

days. 

vi) Listing on Stock Exchanges: - 

Shares are listed on two Stock Exchange viz. The Kolkata Stock Exchange Association Ltd. 

(Regional), and The Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai. However, the trading of shares in the 

company is suspended at Calcutta Stock Exchange.  

The company has been regularly making compliances in terms of the listing agreement with the 

BSE Exchange and quarterly financial results of the company are being published in the 

newspapers. 

vii) Company’s stock code: - 

Kolkata Stock Exchange    011062 

Mumbai Stock Exchange    530261 

Demat ISIN number for NSDL & CDSL  INE674C01010 

viii) Stock Price date 

Trading in shares of the company are taking place at Bombay Stock Exchange only. The matter 

for Calcutta Stock Exchange is under consideration for revocation of its suspension at the 

exchange. Market price data in respect of High and Low during the financial year 2016-2017 are 

not ascertained. The Source is: www.bseindia.co.in 

There were transactions in the shares of the company during the Financial Year 2016-2017. 

However, the performance comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex, are not 

ascertained. 

ix)  Financial Calendar:  

The Company’s financial year is from April 01 to March 31 of the following year. During the 

year under review this has been as follows: - 

Un-audited results for the Quarter Ended Approved by the Board of Directors 

30.06.2016 

30.09.2016 

31.12.2016 

13.08.2016 

11.11.2016 

14.02.2017 

http://www.bseindia.co./
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31.03.2017 ( Audited) 30.05.2017 

x) Financial Audited Results approved by the Board of Directors on 30.05.2017 

xi) Annual General Meeting for the year-ended 31.03.2017 to be held on 25.09.2017.    

xii) Distribution of Shareholding and share holding Pattern as on 31
st
 March, 2017 

Category Number of shares held % of share holding 

A. Promoters’  Holding   

Promoters   

- Indian Promoters   

- Individuals 2174726 43.35 

- Corporate 833000 16.61 

- Foreign Promoters - - 

Sub – Total 3007726 59.96 

B. Non – promoters’ holding   

1. Institutional investors   

a. Mutual Fund    

b. Bank , Financial Institutions and 

Insurance Corporations 

100333 2.00 

c. Central Govt./ State Govt. - - 

d. Foreign Institutional Investors - - 

Sub- Total 100333 2.00 

2.Others   

a. Private corporate bodies 444477 8.86 

b. Indian Public 1463844 29.18 

c. NRI/OBCs - - 

d. Others - - 

Sub- Total 1908321 38.04 

Total 5016380 100.00 

Analysis of Share holding 

Block of Shares No of 

Shareholders 

Percentage 

Shares (%) 

No of Shares held Percentage 

Holders (%) 

        1-  500 2141 4.7640 238980 88.7645 

    501-1000   110 1.8392 92262 4.5605 

  1001-2000 65 1.9288 96758 2.6949 

  2001-3000 18 0.8396 42116 0.7463 

  3001-4000 11 0.8452 42397 0.4561 

  4001-5000 12 1.1331 56840 0.4975 

  5001-10000 16 2.3318 116974 0.6633 

10001-50000 28 12.2654 615280 1.1609 

50001-100000 4 6.1542 308720 0.1658 

And above 7 67.8986 3406053 0.2902 

Total 2412 100.0000 5016380 100.0000 
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xiii)  Address for Correspondence 

M/s. MCS SHARE TRANSFER AGENT LIMITED  

12/1/5, Monohar Pukur Road, Kolkata – 700 026. 

xiv) Plant Location 

Arcuttipore Tea Estate 

P.O. Silchar, Dist. Cachar, Assam. 

 xv)   Dematerialization of Shares 

 % Limited and Central Depository Services Limited as on 31st March, 2017 are not available 

details  of the paid up Equity share capital held in dematerialized form with National Securities 

Depository. 

 xvi)    Outstanding GDRs/ADRs etc as on 31.03.2017  

The company has not issued any of the aforesaid instruments.  

 xvii)  Disclosures  

1. There are related party transactions made by the Company with its promoters, the Directors or 

management or relatives that may not have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 

large.    

Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in Note 27 of Financial statements of the 

company. Compliances in this regard, wherever necessary, in terms of the Companies Act, 1956 

are carried out. 

2. For the year under review, there are strictures or penalties   imposed by either SEBI or the Stock 

Exchanges or any statutory for non-compliance of any matter related with the capital markets.  

The Company has not made payments of Annual Listing fees (including non-compliance fees 

Rs.85500/-) for 2016-17 Rs.319166/- of the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).  

3. The Company has not adopted Non –mandatory requirements. 

    (xviii)   Auditors Certificate on Corporate Governance 

The Company has obtained a certificate from its statutory auditors regarding compliance of 

requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing agreement with 

Stock exchange and the same is annexed. The Certificate will also be sent to the Stock exchange 

alongwith the Annual report by the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

Kolkata                                                   H. K. Bajoria (DIN: 00893180) 

The 30th May 2017                                Managing Director 
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Certificate From Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
To, 
Board of Directors 
Arcuttipore Tea Company Limited 
 

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Arcuttipore 
Tea Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, we state that: 
 
(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
(b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 
are in compliance with existing according standards, applicable laws and regulations; 

 
2. We also certify that based on our knowledge and information provided to us ,there are,  

no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct; 

 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we 

have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we 
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and necessary steps 
have been taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
4. We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee: 

 (a) Significant changes, if any, in internal control over the financial reporting during the 
year; 
(b) Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
 
(c) There are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role 
in the Company’s internal control system over the financial reporting. 

 
We further declare that all Members of Board, its Committee and all Senior Managerial 
Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company of the 
current year. 

For Arcuttipore Tea Company Limited 
 
 
May 30, 2017   Shalakya Kumar Bajoria Harsh Kumar Bajoria 

 

Kolkata   (DIN: 00893170)  (DIN: 00893180) 
Director   Managing Director& CFO 
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Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance  
 
To the Members of Arcuttipore Tea Company Limited 

 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Arcuttipore 
Tea Company Limited, for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as stipulated in Clause 49 of 
the listing Agreement of the said company with the BSE and as stipulated in the relevant 
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements’) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement, except as given 
below: 
 

a) Declarations of the Directors have been obtained by the Company. 
 
b) Auditors have not been invited to attend the Audit Committee meeting.  

 
c) Information regarding internal control system, Scope of Audit, Audit 

observations, defaults in financial obligation to and by the company and non-
payment of goods sold by the company has been placed before the Board of 
Directors. 

 
d) Payment of Annual listing Fees to the Exchange.  

 
e) Information regarding market price data high and low at during each month 

and performance in comparison to broad base indices such as BSE Indices,   
are given in the report except percentage of dematerialization of the shares 
with NSDL & CDSL performance in comparison to broad base indices as the 
shares of the company are given in the report. 

  

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 

For GORA & COMPANY  
Chartered Accountants 

 (FRN 327183E) 
 
 
 
8/2 Kiran Shankar Roy Road     (Gora Chand Mukherjee)  
Kolkata 700 001      Partner 
Date: 30th May, 2017           Membership No- 17630 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given below: 

(a) Industry Structure and Developments 

The tea industry is improving supply position over demand. With the sale volume with 

reasonable realization, the margins are comparatively less remunerative on account of 

continued increase in labour costs and overheads. The Company has had its full production of 

made tea and the same is achieved after introducing significant amount of private borrowed 

fund into the operating system. The company has not sold green leaf during the year as 

margins on sale of made tea are comparatively reasonable. The Company has taken steps for 

cost control & quality control of its and also adopted strategic marketing policy to earn a better 

margin in future, and in the current season 2017-18, the company is contemplating its market 

strategy in respect of sale of its product mainly through private parties and least through 

auctioneers. 

 

(b) Opportunities and Threats  

Your company’s tea produce is presently restricted in domestic market.   

 

(c) Segment-wise or product-wise performance 

In spite of the tea industry operating unfavourable conditions, the performance of your 

company has somehow been sustainable due to its full production of tea and its sale at 

reasonable price during the year review. 

 

(d) Outlook 

 

It is hoped that the tea industry would be improving, with the demand for in domestic markets 

besides exports picking-up in period to come. The Company has been consolidating its brand 

in domestic tea market.  

 

(e) Risks and concerns 

New land for cultivation available to the company, continues to be a constraint. In order to 

increase production of green leaf and the process of re- plantation, the Company is  
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enduring to take necessary steps in this regards despite fund constraints. It would improve, 

revive and sustain its manufacturing capacities provided the company gets the cash flow 

improved. 

 

(f) Internal control systems and their adequacy 

The system of internal control is commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the 

Company. The systems are regularly reviewed to ensure its operational effectiveness. 

 

(g) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance    

These have been covered in the Director’s Report specifically under the section on Financial 

Results and operations. The Statement of Accounts show that the net worth of the company has 

eroded hugely due to losses in operational activities as well as increased overheads coupled 

with erratic climate affecting green leaf production. The Company’s current season 

performance is moderate and the efforts are being made both at the garden and administrative 

office to achieve the budgeted production and moderate realization.  

 

h) Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including 

number of people employed 

 

The Company continues to lay emphasis on training and development of its human resources. 

The requirement of professionally qualified and trained personnel for the garden is regularly 

reviewed to obtain optimum results in all spheres of its activity. 

The Company continued to maintain healthy and cordial Industrial relations at all its 

production facilities. It also strives to maintain the best of relations with its employees and 

ensure providing all mandatory facilities to them. 

 

i) Cautionary Statement  

The Management Discussion and Analysis report contain certain statements that might be 

considered forward looking. These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. 

Actual results of the company may differ materially from these expressed in the statement 

as the factors such as Government policies, local, political and economic development, 

fund requirements, risk inherent to the company could influence the Company’s operations.  
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ANNEXURE - IV 

Form No. MR – 3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

The Members, 

M/s. ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO LIMITED 
4A, Council House Street, 1st Floor, 

Kolkata – 700001 

 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practice by M/s. ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO LIMITED (hereinafter called 

the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conduct/ statutory compliance and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the  M/s. ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO LIMITED, books, papers, minute 

books, forms, and returns filed and other records maintained by the company  and also the information 

provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby   report in our opinion that the company has during the audit period covering 

the financial year ended on 31st March,2017 complied with all the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 

also that the company has proper Board-process and compliance–mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by M/s. ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO LIMITED (“the Company”), for the financial year ended on 31st 

March,2017 according to provision of:-  

 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii)  The Securities Contracts  (Regulation)  Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’)  and the  rules  made thereunder; 

(iii)  The  Depositories  Act, 1996 and the  Regulations  and  Bye-laws  framed  thereunder 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.(NOT APPLICABLE 

TO THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;(NOT APPLICABLE TO 

THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (NOT APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY DURING THE 

PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; (NOT APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) 
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(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; ;(NOT APPLICABLE TO 

THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; ;(NOT 

APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) and 

(h) The  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; ;(NOT 

APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER AUDIT) 

 

(vi) Tea Marketing Control order (TMCO) issued by Tea Board for each tea garden.  

            We also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:- 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. and Calcutta Stock Exchange 

limited.              

                     
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc mentioned above. 

 

i)      The Company has not appointed of Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 

ii)      The Company is in process of appointing of Company Secretary. 

iii) The Company is in process of appointing Nomination & Remuneration Committee to 

comply with the provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder. 

 

We further report that  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. There is no change in composition of the 

Board of Directors. 

 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 

 

We further report that the Company has a tea garden situated at Silchar Cachar, Assam and the Company 
has also tea manufacturing units situated in the gardens.     

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.   

 

Place: Kolkata                                                                             For B.K.BARIK & ASSOCIATES  

Date : 30/05/2017                                                                                              Company Secretaries                                                                                            

 

B.K.Barik 

Practising Company Secretary 

FCS : 5696, C.P.No. 3897 

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an 

integral part of this report. 
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Annexure- A 

 

The Members  

M/s. ARCUTTIPORE TEA CO LIMITED 

4A, Council House Street, 1st Floor, 

Kolkata – 700001 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Management’s Responsibility 

1. It is the responsibility of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise  proper systems to 

ensure  compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the 

systems are adequate and operate effectively 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures 

followed by the Company with respect to Secretarial compliances. 

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is 

adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

Disclaimer 

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Place: Kolkata                                                                                      For B.K.BARIK & ASSOCIATES                                                                                                                                  

Date:  30/05/2017                                                                                                           Company Secretaries                                                                                                                   

 

B.K.Barik 

Practising Company Secretary  

FCS: 5696, C.P.No. 3897 
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Information under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013  read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended March 31, 2017.  

1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
a) Energy Conservation Measures Taken:

All Possible measures and precautions are being taken to reduce the consumption 
of energy.

b) Additional investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption
of energy : Nil

c) Impacts of measures taken at (a) and (b) for reduction of enegry consumption and consequent 
Impact on the cost of Production of Goods : Not Ascertainable.

d) The relevant figures are given below:

2016-17 2015-16

A Power & Fuel Consumption : (Figures in `) (Figures in `)

i) Electricity :-
a) Purchased - Units 410520 348338

Total Amount 3851173 3343897
Rate/unit 9.38 9.60

 
b) Own Generation :-

From DG sets - Units 42894 49100   
Units/ltr of Diesel 2.50 2.50  
Cost/unit 21.30 19.52

 
ii) Furnace Oil for Tea Processing

in withering and Drying
Quantity (K.ltrs) - -
Total Cost - -
Average Rate (Per K. litre) - -

iii) Coal :-
Quantity (M.T) 474.99 468.73
Total Cost ( Rs ) 3248601.21 3,596,515.00   
Average Rate (Rs.per M.T) 6839.34 7672.89

 
iv) H.S.D.Oil for Transport and  

Material Handling
Quantity (K.Ltrs) 7.91 10.00
Total Cost ( Rs. ) 436208.79 456762.12
Average Rate (Rs.per K.Ltrs) 55146.50 45676.21
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v) Petrol for Transport and
Material handling

Quantity (K.Ltrs) 0.90 0.73
Total Cost ( Rs. ) 60529.22 45024.34
Average Rate (Rs.per K.Ltrs) 67254.69 61677.00

 
B Consumption per unit of production :

a) Electricity Consumed - Units 543414 397438
Total Production - Tea (kg) 478519 439907
Consumption per kg- Units 0.88 1.11  
Coal ( Coke)( MT ) 474.99 468.73

b) Furnace Oil for Tea Processing :
Quantity Consumed (K.ltrs) Nil Nil
Total Production - Tea (kg) Nil Nil
Consumption per Kg.- Ltrs. Nil Nil

2) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT :

1) Specific area in which R&D is carried out by the Company  The Company subscribes to
2) Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D Tea Reseach Association
3) Future Plans of Action which is Registered U/s 35(1) (ii)
4) Expenditure on R & D of the income tax Act 1961

3) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTION AND INNOVATION :

1) Efforts made
2) Benefits derived as a result of above effot Not Applicable
3) Imported technology in the last five years

4) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency Rs.NIL Rs.5,51,300/-

Kolkata By Order of the Board
Dated : 26th May, 2014 30.05.2017

H. K. Bajoria (DIN:00893180)
(Managing Director)
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 Annexure VI 

FormNo.MGT-9 

EXTRACTOFANNUALRETURN 

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 

 
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

 
I. REGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS: 

 

i.  CIN 
 

L15491WB1900PLC000220 

ii.  Registration Date 
 

19th January, 1869 

iii.  Name of the Company 

 

ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED 

iv.  Category/Sub-Category of the Company 
 

Public Company 

v.  Address of the Registered office and 
contact details 
 

4A, Council House Street, 1st Floor, 
Kolkata - 700001 

vi.  Whether listed company 

 

Yes 

vii.  Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.   
 

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited 
12/1/5, Manoharpukur Road, Kolkata-
700026, Phone: (033) 4072 4051 to 
4054, Fax: (033) 4072 4050, E-mail: 
mcssta@rediffmail.com 

 
 

II.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 

All the business activities contributing10%or more of the total turnover of the company 
shall be stated:- 

 

Sr.N
o. 

Nameand Description of 

mainproducts/ services 

NIC Code of 

the Product/ 

service 

%  to total turnover of 

the company 

1 Tea Business 090230 100 

2    

3    
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 

Sr. 
No. 

NameAnd AddressOf 
The Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiary 

/Associate 

%of 

shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

1.  NOT APPLICABLE NIL NIL NIL NIL 

2.       

3.       

4.       

 
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total 

Equity) 
 

i. Category-wise Share Holding 

 

Category of 
Shareholders Shareholding at the 1st April, 

2017 

Shareholding as at 31st March, 

2016 

% 

Change 

during 
theyear 

 Demat Physica
l 

Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Dem at Physica 
l 

Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian          

a) Individual/ HUF 2129872 44854 2174726 43.35 2129872 44854 2174726 43.35 - 

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies Corp 833000 Nil 833000 16.61 833000 Nil 833000 16.61 - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any Other - - - - - - - - - 

 
Sub-total(A)(1):- 

2962872 44854 3007726 59.96 2962872 44854 3007726 59.96 - 

2) Foreign          

g) NRIs-
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

h) Other-
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 

j) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

k) Any Other…. - - - - - - - - - 

 
Sub-total(A)(2):- 

- - - - - - - - - 

B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

1. Institutions          

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI Nil 100333 100333 2.00 Nil 100333 100333 2.00 - 

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) -    - - - - - 

e) Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 
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h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - 

 
Sub-total(B)(1) 

Nil 100333 100333 2.00 Nil 100333 100333 2.00 - 

2. Non 
Institutions 

         

a) Bodies Corp. 

(i) Indian 
(ii) Overseas 

 

427268 

 

17709 

 

444977 

 

8.87 

 

487023 

 

17709 

 

504732 

 

10.06 

 

(-)1.19 

b) Individuals 
 

(i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital up 
to Rs. 1 lakh 
 
(ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

 
 

592572 
 

 
 

 
 

 
641142 

 
 

203630 
 

 
 

 
 

 
26000 

 
 

796202 
 

 
 

 
 

 
667142 

 
 

15.87 
 

 
 

 
 

 
13.30 

 
 

386935 
 

 
 

 
 

 
781574 

 
 

209080 
 

 
 

 
 

 
26000 

 
 

596015 
 

 
 

 
 

 
807574 

 
 

11.88 
 

 
 

 
 

 
16.10 

 
 

(+)3.99 
 

 
 

 
 

 
(-)2.83 

c) Others(Specify) - - - - - - - - - 

 
Sub-total(B)(2) 

1660982 247339 1908321 38.04 1655532 252789 1908321 38.04 - 

 
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2) 

 

1660982 

 

347672 

 

2008654 

 

40.04 

 

1655532 

 

359776 

 

2008654 

 

40.04 

 

- 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

4623854 392526 5016380 100.00 4618404 397976 5016380 100.00 - 
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters 

 

Sr. 

No 

Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the 1st 

April, 2016 

Shareholding as at 31st 

March, 2017 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compan
y 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe 
red to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compan
y 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe 
red to total 
shares 

% change 
in share 
holding 
during the 
year 

1.  Pramila Bajoria 1090615 21.74 - 1090615 21.74 - - 

2.  Devesh Trade 
Credit Pvt. Ltd. 

832600 16.60 - 832600 16.60 - - 

3.  Harsh Kumar 

Bajoria 

698887 13.93 - 698887 13.93 - - 

4.  Shalakya 
Kumar Bajoria 

340370 6.79 - 340370 6.79 - - 

5.  Devyani 
Chamria 

44854 0.89 - 44854 0.89 - - 

6.  Anadi Trading 

& Investment 
Pvt. Ltd. 

400 0.01 - 400 0.01 - - 

 Total 3007726 59.96  3007726 59.96   
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iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding(please specify, if there is no change)                           

 

Sr. 
no 

Name of the Share Holder Shareholding at the 1st 
April, 2016 

Shareholding as at 31st 
March, 2017 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

1 Pramila Bajoria 1090615 21.74 - - 

2 Devesh Trade Credit Pvt. 
Ltd. 

832600 16.60 - - 

3 Harsh Kumar Bajoria 698887 13.93 - - 

4 Shalakya Kumar Bajoria 340370 6.79 - - 

5 Devyani Chamria 44854 0.89 - - 

6 Anadi Trading & Investment 
Pvt. Ltd. 

400 0.01 - - 

 
iv.Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters 

and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):                           

 

Sr. 
no 

Name of the Share Holder Shareholding at the 1st 
April, 2016 

Shareholding as at 31st 
March, 2017 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

1 Deeleep (India) Grains (P) 
Ltd. 

215186 4.29 213686 4.26 

2 Sunil Choudhary 126915 2.53 127395 2.54 

3 Raghav Ruia 102500 2.04 102500 2.04 

4 Central Bank of India 100000 1.99 100000 1.99 

5 Hitesh Ramji Javeri 75881 1.51 75881 1.51 

6 Hungerford Consultants (P) 
Ltd. 

73838 1.47 73838 1.47 

7 K K Khandelwal 59001 1.18 59001 1.18 

8 Sunil Kumar Agarwal 50000 0.99 50000 0.99 

9 Sudhir N 39300 0.78 39270 0.78 

10 Pawan Ramgopal Kedia 38612 0.77 38612 0.77 
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v.Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:                           

 

Sr. 
no 

Name of the Share Holder Shareholding at the 1st 
April, 2016 

Shareholding as at 31st 
March, 2017 

  No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 
company 

1 Pramila Bajoria 1090615 21.74 1090615 21.74 

2 Harsh Kumar Bajoria 698887 13.93 698887 13.93 

3 Shalakya Kumar Bajoria 340370 6.79 340370 6.79 

4 Chandi Prasad Poddar - - - - 

5 Naresh Shah - - - - 

 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 

payment 
 

 Secured Loans 

excluding 

deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the 

beginning of the financial 

year 
 

i) Principal Amount 

ii) Interest due but not 

paid 

iii) Interest accrued but 

not 

 
 
 
 

29,45,095 
Nil 
 

Nil 

 
 
 
 

6,40,90,512 
Nil 
 

Nil 

 
 
 
 
0 

 
 
 
 

6,70,35,607 
 

Total(i + ii + iii) 29,45,095 6,40,90,512 
 

0 
 

6,70,35,607 

Change in Indebtedness 

during the financial year 

 -  Addition 

 -  Reduction 

 
 

Nil 

7,61,146 

 
 

5,59,68,548 

5,55,84,984 

 
 
0 

0 
 
 

 
 

5,59,68,548 

    5,63,46,130 

Net Change (7,61,146) 3,83,564  (3,77,582) 

Indebtedness  at the 

end  of the financial year 

 

j) Principal 

Amount 

ii) Interest due but not 

paid  
iii) Interest accrued but 
not due 

 

 
21,07,190 

 
 

76,759 
 

Nil 

 

 
6,44,74,076 

 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 

 

 
 
 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 

 

 
6,65,81,266 

 
 

76,759 
 

Nil 

Total (I +ii +iii) 21,83,949 6,44,74,076  6,66,58,025 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

 

Sl. 

No. 

ParticularsofRemuneration Managing Director 

Harsh Kumar Bajoria 

Total 

Amount 

1.  Gross salary 
 

(a)Salary as per provisions 

containedinsection17(1) 

oftheIncome-taxAct, 

1961 

 

(b)Valueofperquisitesu/s 

17(2)Income-taxAct, 

1961 

 

(c)Profitsinlieuofsalary 

undersection17(3)Income- 

taxAct,1961 

 

 
 

Nil 

 
 

 

 
Nil 

 

 

 
Nil 

 
 

Nil 

 
 

 

 
Nil 

 

 

 
Nil 

2.  Stock Option 
 

Nil Nil 

3.  Sweat Equity 

 
Nil Nil 

4.  Commission 

-  as%ofprofit 

-  Others, specify… 

 

Nil Nil 

5.  Others, please specify 
 

Nil Nil 

6.  Total(A) 
 

Nil Nil 

 Ceiling as per the Act 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Amount Naresh 

Shah 

Chandi Prasad Poddar 

 

 Independent Directors 
·Fee for attending board committee 

meetings 

·Commission 

·Others, please specify 
 

 
Nil 
 

Nil 
Nil 
 
 

 
Nil 
 

Nil 
Nil 

 
Nil 
 

Nil 
Nil 

 Total(1) Nil  Nil 

 Other Non-Executive Directors 
 
·Fee for attending board committee 
meetings 

·Commission 

·Others, please specify 

 

Naresh Shah 
 
 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Chandi Prasad Poddar 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 
 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 Total(2) Nil Nil Nil 

 Total(B)=(1+2) Nil Nil Nil 

 Total Managerial Remuneration    

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act    

 

 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 

 

Sl. 

no. 

Particularsof 

Remuneration 
KeyManagerialPersonnel 

  CEO Company 

Secretary 

CFO Total 

1.  Grosssalary 

(a)Salaryasper 

provisions containedin 
section17(1)of 

theIncome-tax Act,1961 

 

(b)Valueof 

perquisitesu/s 

17(2)Income-tax 

Act,1961 

 

(c)Profitsinlieuof 

salaryundersection 

17(3)Income-tax 

Act,1961 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 

2.  Stock Option Nil 

 

Nil Nil Nil 

3.  Sweat Equity Nil 

 

Nil Nil Nil 

4.  Commission 

-  as%of profit 

-others, specify… 

Nil 

 

Nil Nil Nil 
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5.  Others ,please specify Nil 

 

Nil Nil Nil 

6.  Total Nil 

 

Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOFFENCES: 

 

Type Section of 
the 
companies 

Act 

Brief 
description 

Details of Penalty/ 

Punishment/Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority[RD 
/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal 
made. If 
any(give 

details) 

A.Company 

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

B.Directors 

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

C. Other Officers In Default 

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED (“the 
company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the 
Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility For The Financial Statements 
 
The Company ‘s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in  accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the accompany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free of material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.     

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  
 
We have taken into accounts the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
An Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the company’s preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion: -  
 

i. Note 12.4 regarding, non-provision / non-ascertainment of diminution in value of shares held 
as stock in trade, the eventual shortfall that may arise there from cannot be commented upon 
by us. 

 
ii. Note 12.5 regarding non-availability of shares held as stock in trade for physical verification. 

 
iii. Note 22.1 regarding non-provision of interest on loan taken. 

 
 iv.        Note 29 regarding non-provision and basis of ascertainment of gratuity liability on the 
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management's estimate, which may be different if ascertained on the basis of actuarial 
valuation and the impact of which is not ascertainable. This is not in consonance with 
Accounting Standard-15 on Accounting of Retirement benefits issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).  
 
Due to non provisions for interest and for gratuity liability, the Loss for the year is lower by 
Rs.16,46,534/- (Previous year Rs.7,20,523/-), Reserve and Surplus (Debit Balance ) are lower 
and current liabilities at the year end are lower by Rs.1,85,56,076/- (Previous year 
Rs.1,52,14,923/-) (to the extent ascertained). 

 
Opinion  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the 
effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the Financial Statements give 
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 
2017 and its loss and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
 
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Financial Statements: 
 
Note 12.4 regarding, non-provision / non-ascertainment of diminution in value of shares held as stock 
in trade, the eventual shortfall that may arise there from. 

 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

 
Note 22.1 regarding non-provision of interest on loan taken. 

 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
 
Note 29 regarding non-provision and basis of ascertainment of gratuity liability on the management's 
estimate, which may be different if ascertained on the basis of actuarial valuation and the impact of 
which is not ascertainable. This is not in consonance with Accounting Standard-15 on Accounting of 
Retirement benefits issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) i.e. on Actuarial 
basis. 
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a.  We have  sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge      
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit, 

 
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow statement dealt with by this 
report are in agreement with the books of account,            

 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
 
e.  On the basis of written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2017 from being appointed as a 
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”.  

 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position except to Note No 8.2 & 8.3 (Refer) to the financial statements.  

  
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses.  
  

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to 
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8th 
November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 and the same are in accordance with the 
books of accounts maintained by the Company (refer Note No.14.1).     
 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub section 11 of Section 143 of the Act,  we give in the “Annexure B”,  
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable. 

 
 
 

 
         For GORA & COMPANY 
                 Chartered Accountants 

  FRN 327183E 
        
 
 
 

         Gora Chand Mukherjee  

Place: Kolkata                   (Partner) 

Date: 30th May 2017    Membership No. 17630                                                                                                                        
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date  
 
Statement under Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016  

 

i. (a) Proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets 
are being updated from time to time by the company. 

 
(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management 

during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. In our Opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of company and nature of its 
assets. 

 
 (c) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company read with 
Note No.9.4.  

 
ii. (a) The Inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at regular 

intervals. There is inventory of finished stock of tea at the year end with third parties and confirmations 
for the same have not been obtained from the concerned third parties. In our opinion and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, no discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. 

 
   (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of 

physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the company and nature of its business. 

 
iii. (a) The company has taken/granted certain unsecured loan and /or advances in the nature of loans 

from/to the companies, firms, parties covered under the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act 2013. In the absence of relevant information and related documents/records, we are 
unable to quantify the number of companies and amount involved in the transactions. There is 
however, interest free loan of Rs.1,58,00,000/- taken by the company from a company other than the 
aforesaid companies and parties . The maximum amount of  such outstanding at any time during the 
year was Rs.1,58,00,000/- ,and at the year end,  the balance is Rs.1,58,00,000/-. The company has 
also  taken, and has at the year end,  the remaining outstanding  of interest bearing  unsecured loans 
amounting Rs 2,24,19,994/- in aggregate (previous year Rs Rs.2,53,14,698/-) from  several companies 
other than the aforesaid such companies ,parties and an individual . Moreover, the company has an 
interest free advance in the nature of unsecured loan amounting Rs. 5,87,068/-(previous year Rs. 
49,00,000/-) to bodies corporate at the year end  and the same are receivable on demand. The 
Company has made related parties transactions which are stated in Note 27 of the Financial 
Statements. 

   
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the rate of interest and 

other terms and conditions of the said unsecured loans taken and given  by the company, are not 
prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the company. 

(c) In respect of the said loans and interest thereon , there are no overdue amounts and the principal loan 
amounts are repayable on demand, except for the interest free long term loan Rs.1,58,00,000/- which 
has been renewed for re payment  within a period of 3 years. 

(d) In case of other loans taken and or given, there is no stipulation for payment of principal and interest 
amount except as stated in Para iii(a) and iii(c). As such, we are unable to ascertain whether such 
terms are prejudicial to the interest of the company and whether the said loan is overdue for 
repayment.  
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iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans  

excepting loan taken from the individual pursuant to the terms and conditions of the loan agreement dated 
21.01.2017 made by the individual and the company, and investment made. 

v The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year. 

vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under clause 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the year for the 
products of the Company. No Cost Audit has been conducted during the year. 

vii.  As given in Note 7.2 & 7.3 and according to the information and explanations given to us in respect of 
statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales-Tax, Value Added tax, Professional Tax. Cess on 
Green leaf and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year. The old statutory 
dues on these accounts for the earlier years, as stipulated, are being deposited with the concerned 
authorities. 

       (b)According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Provident Fund 
excepting Rs.49,57,652.92/- (previous year Rs.31,84,627/-). income tax, sales tax excepting 
Rs.6,26,594./- (previous year Rs.3,05,413/-), Value Added tax excepting Rs.2,84,778/- wealth tax, 
service tax, professional tax excepting Rs,1,21,322/- (Previous year Rs.1,21,322/-)., custom duty, 
excise duty or cess on green leaf excepting Rs.36,71,077/- (Previous year Rs.40,03,752/-), land 
Revenue tax Rs.14,05,943/- (previous year Rs.14,05,943/-) as at 31st March, 2017(including the 
outstandings  for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable), outstanding 
on account of any dispute, other than the following:   

Name of 
Statute 

Nature of Dues Amount Rs. Period to which the 
amount relates 

Forum where 
dispute is pending 

Income tax 
Act 1961 

Income tax  Assessment 
per CIT (A) –
IV  Order 
dated 
17.12.2013 in 
appeal 

Asst  Year 2002-03 Appettate 
Tribunal     

Wealth Tax 
Act 

Demand  raised in the Order of  
regular assessment u/s 17& 
16(5)  

5,370 Asst Year 2002-03  

`Wealth 
Tax Act 

Demand  raised in the Order of  
regular assessment u/s 17& 
16(5) 

15,303 Asst Year 2003-04  

Wealth Tax 
Act 

 

Demand  raised on the Order f  
regular assessment u/s 17& 
16(5) 

12,921 Asst Year 2004-05  
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viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks and  Financial institution excepting overdue installments in 
aggregate of  Rs. 3,02,750/-( including overdue interest Rs.76,759/-) at the year end .The  Company 
has not taken any loan from  the government and has not issued any debentures. 

  
ix. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.  

x. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year.  

 
xi. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, no managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act as the 
same have been wavied by the Managing Director due to persisting losses and or loss during the year . 

  
xii In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company.  
 

xiii  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the record 
      of the Company ,  transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of 
      Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by 
      the applicable accounting standards. 

 
  xiv Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.  

 
    xv Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.  

 
xvi The company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.  

 
.  

         For GORA & COMPANY 
                 Chartered Accountants 

  FRN 327183E 
           
 
 

         Gora Chand Mukherjee  

Place: Kolkata                   (Partner) 

Date: 30th May 2017    Membership No. 17630                                                                                                                        
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 “Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arcuttipore Tea Company Limited 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.] These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
  
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that  
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receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.   

 
For and on behalf of  
GORA & COMPANY  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN: 327183E 
 

 

 

(Gora Chand Mukherjee) 
Partner  
Membership number: 17630 
 
Place: Kolkata  
Date:  30.05.2017 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
1. General Information: 

 
Arcuttipore Tea Company Ltd. was incorporated with the object of Tea Plantation and 
Manufacturing of Tea at its unit at Silchar. The Company is a Public Limited Company and is 
listed in Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)  

 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 
  
Basis of preparation 
 

1) These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on 
the basis of going concern and have been prepared to comply with the accounting 
standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
2) Accounting policies not specifically stated to otherwise are consistent and are in 

consonance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
3) The previous year’s figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary 

to confirm the current year’s presentation. 
 

3. Tangible Assets 
 

1) Fixed Assets other than revalued assets are stated at cost less depreciation.  
 

2) Revalued assets are shown at net current Replacement Cost. 
 
3) Expenditure on extension of tea planting is capitalised and the same is shown under 

the head Land (leasehold) and Development Account.  
 

4. Depreciation 
 

1) Depreciation on Fixed assets is provided on the basis of useful life of the assets as 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. 

 

2) Balance amount of Increase in value of fixed assets due to revaluation is depreciated 
and recognized on the basis of remaining useful life of the assets in accordance with 
provisions specified in the Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. 

 
3) Depreciable value of fixed asset is its cost of acquisition as reduced by residual value 

of five percent of the cost of acquisition of the asset. 
 

5. Impairment of Assets  

 
1) The carrying amounts of cash Generating unit / assets are reviewed at Balance sheet 

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, if any such indication 
exists; the recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of net selling price and 
value in use. Impairment loss is recognized wherever carrying amount exceeds 
recoverable amount. 
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6. Investment 

 

1) Both Investments and Non current investment are stated at cost, Provision to 
diminution in value of such investments, if any, other than temporary in nature has 
not been made in the accounts.   

 

 

7. Inventories 
 

1) Stores, Spares and Packing materials are valued at cost on FIFO basis. 
 

2) Finished Goods of made Tea as well as green leaf if any are valued at net realizable 
value. There is no stock of green leaf at the year end.  

 
3) The Company has followed valuation of finished goods of tea at net realization value. 

Pursuant to the Accounting Standard (AS-2) on inventory valuation issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, inventories are required to be valued at 
cost or net realizable vale whichever is lower. Considering the nature of business, the 
Management has followed consistently the practice of valuation at net realizable 
value. 

 
4) Shares held as stock in trade are taken valued at cost 
 

 

8. Recognition of Income & Expenditure 
 

1) Income and expenses, unless specified otherwise, are recognised on accrual basis.  
 

2) Sales are recognized on passing of property in goods as per the terms of sales on 
completion of auction in case of auction sales and in case of consignment sale, 
including deemed consignment sale on account of receipt of money for earlier years.. 
Sales of tea and green leaf are inclusive of excise and cess duty and are net of VAT.  

 

9. Taxes on Income 
 

1) Current Tax is determined as the amount of Tax payable in respect of Taxable 
Income for the period based on applicable tax rates and laws. Deferred tax is 
recognised on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and 
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or 
more subsequent periods and is measured using Tax rates and laws that have 
enacted or substantively enacted as on Balance Sheet date. 

 
No provisions have been made in these accounts for Income Tax and for Agriculture 
Tax in view of current year losses and for bought forward losses. No provision have 
been made for minimum alternative tax as lower of loss or unabsorbed depreciation 
brought forward is greater than book profit as envisaged in Section 115 J (b) of 
Income Tax Act, 1961.  

 
2) Deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 

future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets will be 
realised. Such assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to reassess 
reliability thereof. 
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10. Excise Duty and Cess 
 
1) Excise duty and Cess on dispatch of manufactured tea from the factory during the 

year, is provided in the accounts. Cess on owned green leaf and bought leaf for the 
year has been provided in the accounts. 

 
 
11. Government / Tea Board subsidy / grant 

 
1) Subsidy received from the Tea Board during the year is treated as revenue receipt, 

and adjusted with the corresponding expenditure in the Profit and Loss statement. 
There is no such receipts during the year nor provided for in the year. 

 
12. Retirement Benefits 

 

 Liability for gratuity & leave encashment is accounted for on cash basis. However, 
amount of gratuity Rs.3,95,955/-.paid during the year and the amount paid on gratuity 
Rs.8,49,800/- up to 31.03.2017 has been shown as Other Advances as on that date 
(Refer Note 29) 

 

13. Borrowing Cost 

 
            Borrowing cost is charged as expenses in the year in which these are incurred. 
 
14.       Contingent Liability 

 
Contingent Liabilities are generally not provided for in the accounts and are 
separately shown in the notes to accounts. 

 
15. Cash & Cash equivalents 

 
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and 
balances with bank. 

 
16. Earning per Share 

 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the 
company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the, period after deducting any 
attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, 
,such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in 
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or 
loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.  
 

17. Segment reporting 

   
Segments have been identified and reported taking into account nature of products, 
the differing risks and returns associated with operations. 

 

 



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

(Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.)
A Cash Flow  from Operating Activities:  

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax and Exceptional/ (1,849,837.62)       860,729.10            
Non recurring items  
Adjustments for  

Depreciation Expenses 1,975,995.00       1,621,273.00    
Interest Received (221,836.41)         (154,561.00)      
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -                  
Interest Paid 2,590,959.57       3,648,082.92    
Capital work in progress wtitten off -                      -                  
Liability no longer required written back (4,131,239.59)       (4,122,640.07)   
Surplus on Secured loan settlement -                      -                  
Sundry Balances Written Off -                      213,878.57          -                  992,154.85            

 
Operating Profit before Working Capital (1,635,959.05)       1,852,883.95         
Changes Adjustments for

Trade & Other Receivables (4,031,395.58)       949,384.35       
Inventories 13,495,458.91      (12,060,633.84) 
Unsecured Loan & Advances  Given 7,743,714.62        (1,306,700.29)   
Unsecured Loans taken (377,581.51)          8,980,785.54    
Trade Payables & Other Liabilities (10,791,510.07)    6,038,686.37        11,768,003.69  8,330,839.45         

4,402,727.32       10,183,723.40        
 

Cash generated from Operations  
Direct Taxes Paid/ Adjusted 386,856.98            -                        

4,015,870.34        10,183,723.40        
Cash Flow before Exceptional/Non  
Recurring Items -                       -                        
Exceptional/Non Recurring Items -                       -                        

 
NET CASH 4,015,870.34        10,183,723.40      

B Cash Flow  From Investing Activities  
Purchase of Fixed Assets 1,658,992.74         (6,231,771.57)         
Sale of Fixed Assets -                        
Purchase of Shares as  Investments -                       -                        
Sale of Investments converted into stock in trade/ w/off -                      -                        
Loans From Companies & Others  
Interest Income Received (221,836.41)         154,561.00            
Net Cash used in Investing Activities 1,437,156.33        (6,077,210.57)       

C Cash Flow  from Financing Activities
Loans From Companies & Others -                      -                        
Repayment of Unsecured Loans -                      -                        
Repayment of Secured Loans -                      -                        
Interest Paid 2,590,959.57       (3,648,082.92)         
Dividend Paid -                      -                        

Net Cash from Financing Activities 2,590,959.57       (3,648,082.92)       
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) (12,245.56)            458,429.91            
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 893,678.46            435,248.55            
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 881,432.90           893,678.46            

   

   

For GORA &Company            Harsh Kumar Bajoria
Chartered Accountants             DIN 00893180

  
Gora Chand Mukherjee       Shalakya Bajoria

8/2 Kiran Shankar Roy Road Partner
Kolkata, the 30th May 2017

Membership No 17630                  

 

Director

Director
DIN 00893170

Cash Flow  Statement for the year ended 31st March 2017

"THIS IS THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE."

2015-162016-17



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

(Figures in Rs.)
Particulars Note As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016

I.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
          Shareholders' funds
          (a) Share Capital 1 53,083,650.00                          53,083,650.00                      
          (b) Reserves and Surplus 2 (38,124,940.68)                         (35,600,518.08)                     
  
          Non-current liabilities
          (a) Long-Term Borrowings 3 17,564,831.46                          17,784,462.38                      
          (b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 830,546.00                               830,546.00                           
 
          Current liabilities
          (a) Short-Term Borrowings 5 49,093,194.04                          49,251,144.63                      
          (b) Trade Payables 6 14,623,226.05                          14,021,789.88                      
          (c) Other Current Liabilities 7 12,728,525.34                          25,442,174.17                      
          (d) Long-Term Provisions 8 -                                            2,810,537.00                        

 
TOTAL 109,799,032.21                        127,623,785.98                    

 
II.  ASSETS Non-current assets  
          Non-current assets
          (a) Fixed Assets 9  
               (i) Tangible Assets 83,667,186.54                          84,271,916.80                      
               (ii) Intangible Assets -                                            -                                        
               (iii) Capital Work-in-Progress -                                            -                                        
               (iv) Intangible Assets Under Development -                                            -                                        

83,667,186.54                          84,271,916.80                      
          (b) Non-Current Investments  4,500,000.00                            4,500,000.00                        
          (c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 10 830,546.00                               830,546.00                           
          (d) Long-Term Loans and Advances 11 2,702,245.61                            11,705,872.94                      
          (e) Other Non-Current Assets  -                                            -                                        
         Current assets
          (a) Current Investments  -                                            -                                        
          (b) Inventories 12 10,017,779.95                          23,513,238.86                      
          (c) Trade Receivables 13 3,920,380.57                            1,093,583.92                        
          (d) Cash and Cash equivalents 14 881,432.90                               893,678.46                           
          (e) Short-Term Loans and Advances 15 1,976,825.71                            716,913.00                           
          (f) Other Current Assets 16 1,302,634.93                            98,036.00                             

TOTAL 109,799,032.21                        127,623,785.98                    
Significant accounting policies: -                                            -                                        
Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 32
As per our Report of even date annexed For GORA &Company     Harsh Kumar Bajoria

Chartered Accountants             DIN 00893180
(FRN No.327183E)   Director

Gora Chand Mukherjee       Shaklakya Bajoria
8/2 Kiran Shankar Roy Road           Partner   DIN 00893170
Kolkata,  Tuesday , the 30th  day of May 2017. Membership No 17630               Director

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

(Figures in Rs.)
Particulars Note 2016-17 2015-2016

I. Revenue from operations 17                 66,559,128.53                                      34,383,964.50 
II. Other income 18                   6,140,727.08                                        6,035,470.29 
III. Total Revenue (I+II)                 72,699,855.61                                      40,419,434.79 
IV. Expenses:

Cultivation Expenses 19                 14,198,577.81                                      11,793,898.20 
Puchase of Green Leaf                   2,974,458.00 812873.50
Changes in inventories of finished goods 
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

20                 14,920,593.00                                    (11,489,738.00)

Employee benefits expense 21                 17,093,616.92                                      12,680,552.37 
Finance costs 22                   2,590,959.57                                        3,648,082.92 
Depreciation and amortization expense 23                   1,975,995.00                                        1,621,273.00 
Other expenses 24                 20,795,492.93                                      20,491,763.70 
Total Expenses                 74,549,693.23                                      39,558,705.69 

V.
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 
items and tax (III - IV)

                (1,849,837.62)                                           860,729.10 

VI. Exceptional items                                    -                                                           -   
VII. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V-

VI)
                (1,849,837.62)                                           860,729.10 

VIII. Extraordinary items                                    -                                                           -   
IX. Profit before tax (VII-VIII)                 (1,849,837.62)                                           860,729.10 
X. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax                                    -                                             161,990.00 
(2) Income tax for earlier years (net)                      386,856.98                                                         -   
(2) Deferred tax                                    -                                                           -   

XI. Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing 
operations (VII-VIII)

                (2,236,694.60)                                           698,739.10 

XII.
Profit/(loss) from discountinuing operations                                    -                                                           -   

XIII. Tax expense of discountinuing operations                                    -                                                           -   
XIV. Profit/(loss) from discountinuing operations 

(after tax) (XII-XIII)
                                   -                                                           -   

XV. Profit (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV)                 (2,236,694.60)                                           698,739.10 
XVI. Earnings per equity share: 25  

(1) Basic                               (0.45)                                                      0.14 
(2) Diluted                               (0.45)                                                      0.14 

Significant Accounting Policies:   
Notes on Financial Statements 1 to 32

As per our Report of even date annexed (FRN No.327183E)           DIRECTOR 

8/2 Kiran Shankar Roy Road
Kolkata, The Tuesday 30th May, 2017

Gora Chand Mukherjee           Shalakya Kumar Bajoria

Membership No 17630                             DIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2017

For GORA  & Company              Harsh Kumar Bajoria
Chartered Accountants                                DIN 00893180

  Partner                                                         DIN 00893170



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Stetement for the Year ended 31st March, 2017

(Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.)
As at As at 

1 Share Capital 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Authorised:
70,00,000 ( Previous year 70,00,000) Ordinary 
Shares of Rs.10/- each 70,000,000.00         70,000,000.00        
Issued :
56,00,900  ( Previous year 56,00,900 ) Ordinary 
Shares of Rs.10/- each 56,009,000.00         56,009,000.00        
Subscribed & Paid-Up:
50,16,380 ( Previous year 50,16,380 ) Ordinary 
Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 50,163,800.00         50,163,800.00        
Add: Shares Forfeited 2,919,850.00           2,919,850.00          
Total 53,083,650.00         53,083,650.00        

1.1 70,000 (Previous year 70,000) shares  out of issued, subscribed and paid up share capital  were issued and allotted as fully paid up
Bonus shares by capitalisation of Reserves. 
 

1.2 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares :
 As at As at 

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
     No of      No of

        Name of of the Share holders  shares - % held  shares - % held
Devesh Trade Credit Private Limited 832600              16.60 832600          16.60
Smt. Pramila Bajoria 1090615            21.74 1090615        21.74
Harsh Kumar Bajoria 698887              13.93 698887          13.93
Shalakya  Kumar Bajoria 340370                6.79 340370            6.79

1.3 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below :
 As at As at 

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
        Name of of the Share holder No of  shares No of  shares 

Ordinary Shares at the beginning of the the year 5016380 5016380
Add:- Shares Issued during the year -                          -                           
Less : Shares canclled during the year -                          -                           

Ordinary Shares at the end of the year 5016380 5016380

As at As at 
2 Reserves And Surplus 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Capital Reserve 
 As per Last Account 57,350.00                57,350.00                 

Share Premium Account
 As per Last Account 37,404,750.00         37,404,750.00          

Revaluation Reserve
 As per Last Account 46,190,911.00         46,478,639.00          

 Less : Transfer to Profit & Loss account
 on account of Depreciation (287,728.00)             (287,728.00)              

45,903,183.00         46,190,911.00          

General Reserve
 As per Last Account  3,627,297.06           3,627,297.06            
 
Profit and Loss Account
 As per Last Account  (122,880,826.14)   (123,579,565.24)    
Add :- Profit / (Loss) for the year  (2,236,694.60)       (125,117,520.74)      698,739.10            (122,880,826.14)       

 
Total   (38,124,940.68)        (35,600,518.08)       

57



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

As at As at 
3 Long Term Borrowings 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Secured Loan
  
From a bank  1,081,786.40        1,619,431.50         
From a Finance Company  683,045.06           1,764,831.46           365,030.88            1,984,462.38            

Unsecured
From a Body Corporate 15,800,000.00         15,800,000.00          

Total 17,564,831.46         17,784,462.38        

3.1 Secured loans taken from a bank are against purchase of vehicles, and the said loan amounts are repayable within  2/5 years. 

3.2 Secured loans taken from a financial company are against purchase of machineries & others  and the same are repayable over 3 years,
 which includes overdue payments of Rs.3,02,750/- including Overdue interest Rs. 76759.49 

3.3 Unsecured Loan taken from a Body Corporate is interest free and is renewed for repayment within a period of 3 years.

4 Deferred Tax Liability As at As at 
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

As Per Last Account 830,546.00              830,546.00             
Depreciation  ( Charge ) -                          -                         
Total 830,546.00              830,546.00             

4.1 As there is uncertainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available, deferred tax assets have not been recognised and reviewed during
the year. However, the components of deferred assets and liabilities as on 31st March, 2017 are as above.

5 Short Term Borrowings As at As at 
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Secured
From a bank  419,117.80           569,164.40          
From a Financial Company  -                       419,117.80              391,468.23          960,632.63             

 
Unsecured  
Other Loans
From Bodies Corporate 35,717,130.00         40,868,393.00          
On Bill Discounting Account 2,348,485.00           2,733,214.00            
From Others 10,608,461.24         4,688,905.00            
Total 49,093,194.04         49,251,144.63          

  
5.1 Unsecured- Other Loans includes Rs. 2,24,19,994/- (Previous year Rs.2,53,14,986/-) as  interest bearing loans and the balance amount

Rs.2,66,73,200/- (Previous year Rs. 2,29,75,526/-) are without bearing interest. Loan amounts are repayable on demand.

5.2 Unsecured - Others include loan of Rs.95,00,000/- from a individual and of Rs.11,08,641/- from Directors.  
  

6 Trade Payables  As at As at 
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 8,780,207.31           10,171,724.07          

Others 5,843,018.74           3,850,065.81            

Total 14,623,226.05         14,021,789.88        

6.1 Details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise are not readiable available with the company



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

7 Other Current Liabilities As at As at 
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Advance from Customers ****  1,059,020.00           14,251,592.09          

Other payable 11,669,505.34         11,190,582.08          

Total 12,728,525.34         25,442,174.17        

**** Includes Rs.10,59,020/- (Previous year 98,22,263/-) from Certain Consignment parties. Accounts sales against despatch of goods on
consignment of 10,710 kgs (Previous year 1,13,906 kgs) are pending.   

7.1 Other payables include amount of statutory dues, Cess, and P.F. dues, land Revenue, TDS dues & others. 

7.2 The Company has settled for  P.F. outstanding dues with appropriate Authorities in earlier years. The aggregate amount of total outstanding as
on 31.03.2017 as per the records of the Company is Rs.49,57,652.92/- (Previous year Rs.45,83,590/-) which includes Rs.29,08,919.12/- (Previous
year Rs.15,62,380/-) for the year 2016-17 against which Rs.5,61,816/- (previous Year Rs. 4,63,882/-) has since been paid. The P.F. dues amounts
are the aggregate of both Employers and Employees contributions and net of P.F. Collections and P.F.Advance. The Company has paid during the
year the old outsatnding dues as under:-

i) Rs.9,00,000/- (previous year Rs.8,70,000/-) in aggregate have been paid for P.F. dues against P.F. Bakijai case.

7.3 The Company has outstanding dues for Cess on Green Leaf including bought leaf with appropriate Authorities in earlier years. The aggregate 
amount of total outstanding as on 31.03.2017 as per the records of the Company is Rs.3671077.12/- (Previous year Rs.40,15,065/-) which
includes Rs. 6,73,879.15/- (Previous year Rs. 4,97,993/-) on owned leaf and  Rs. 45,872.50 on bought leaf  for the year 2016-17 and  against
which Rs.93,892/- (previous year Rs.NIL-) has since been paid. The Company has paid during the year old outstanding dues as under:-  

i) Rs.7,20,000/- ( Previous year 7,20,000/-)  in aggregate have been paid for  cess on Green Leaf  during the year under review on Bakijai cases.

7.4 Necessary steps have been taken to regularise payment of certain statutory non-compliance in regard to  Profident Fund dues, Cess, Cess on 
Land Revenue etc. Interest and Levies due on due to such delay shall be accounted for as and when ascertained. The Company has however
regularly depositing ( read with  above Note 7.2) Tax Deducted at Source and Provident Fund contributions for the year with the concerned
authorities.

 
8 Long Term Provisions As at As at 

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
Provisions for Income Tax -                          2,648,547.00            

Provision for Income tax AY 2016-17 -                          161,990.00               

Total -                          2,810,537.00          
8.1 In view of taxable income for the year  , no provision for current Income tax ,and for Assam Agricultural Tax ,has been provided 
 in the accounts as per the relevant tax laws.

8.2 For Income tax Assessment Year 2002-03 ,  an appeal has been preferred by  DCIT Circle with Income tax Appellate Tribunal 
against Appellate Order No 266/ CIT (A) -IV /2009-10 dated 30.10.2013 upon the assessment and agaisnt refund  of Rs 1358214/-
 that  has been determined thereagainst . The case is pending before the Concerned Authorities and consequently,  income tax 
liability , if any ,has not been ascertained.

8.3 For Income tax Assessment Year 2003-04 ,  an appeal has been preferred by  the Income Tax Officer with Income tax Appellate 
Tribunal against Appellate Order No 266/ CIT (A) -2 /2014-15 dated 24.06.2015 upon the assessment.The case is pending 
before the Concerned Authorities , hence income tax liability if any, has not been ascertained.

 



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

10 Deferred Tax Assets ( Refer no 4.1) As at As at 
 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

As Per last Account
Unabsorbed depreciation 
& Carried forward Losses -                          -                           

Expenses allowable on 
Payment basis (credit) 830,546.00              830,546.00               

830,546.00              830,546.00             

11 Long Term Loans and Advances As at As at 
 (Unsecured, Considered good) 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

 
Deposits 1,139.00                 18,399.00                 

Loan to bodies corporate -                          4,900,000.00            

Advance  Income Tax -                          4,453,872.98            

Other Loan and  Advances * 2,701,106.61           2,333,600.96            

Total 2,702,245.61           11,705,872.94        

* includes Advances to  garden employees and advances to other parties 
* includes Rs. 2,90,000/- to a Related Party (without bearing interest)

11.1 Loans given to companies are without bearing interest and the same are repayable on demand.

12 Inventories As at As at 
  31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Stores  & Spares ** 4,418,424.95           2,993,290.86            

Stock in  Trade - shares 3,585,000.00           3,585,000.00            

Stock of Tea made **** 2,014,355.00           16,934,948.00          

Total 10,017,779.95         23,513,238.86        

** includes stores in transit  Rs. 5,84,463/- ( Previous year Rs. 1,32,955/- )

**** includes Rs.12,58,980/- (Tea 10,710 kgs.) ( Previous Year Rs. 1,20,65,590/-  Tea  1,13,906 kgs )  of Goods on Consignment basis  against which 
Accounts sales are pending .

12.1 Details of Stock in trade - shares As at As at 
 (On Conversion from Investment) 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Un Quoted : (Fully Paid-up)
No. of shares
40,000 (previous year 40,000) Equity share of Rs. 10/- each of
Rajhans Vincom Private Limited 420,000.00              420,000.00               

19,300 (previous year 19,300) Equity share of Rs. 10/- each of
Atlantica Exim Limited 965,000.00              965,000.00               

4,400 (previous year 4,400) Equity share of Rs 500/- each of 2,200,000.00           2,200,000.00            
MNJ Solution Pvt.Ltd

3,585,000.00           3,585,000.00          

12.2 Investment in Unquoted shares held as Stock-in -Trade on conversion in the earlier years were taken at book cost and

 

12.3 The company has  stocks of made tea ,shares and stores as at year end . There in no stock of green leaf as on that date . 
 The company has consistently followed valuation of finished goods at net realisable value. Pursuant to the Accounting

Standard (AS 2) - on inventory valuation, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and made mandatory
w.e.f. 01.04.1999, inventories are to be valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Considering the nature of
business, the management has continued the practice of valuation at net realisable value  excepting stocks of shares and stores 
that have been valued and taken at book cost.

12.4 No provision for diminution in value of shares held as Stock-in trade, if any, has been accounted for in the accounts and 
 the same is considered to be of temporary in nature.

12.5 Shares held as Stock-in-trade have not been  made available to Auditors for their verification.

12.6 The company has not identified slow/non moving and obsolete stores during the year.

investment of 40,000 equity shares of Rajhans Vincom Pvt Ltd has converted into stock-in-trade are yet to be transferrered in the name of 
the Company.



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

13 Trade Receivables As at As at 
 (Unsecured, Considered Good) 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Over six Months 1,725,013.83           663,009.83               

Others 2,195,366.74           430,574.09               

Total 3,920,380.57           1,093,583.92          
 

13.1 Trade receivables include Debtors amouting Rs 19,48,754.00 (previous year Rs.Nil)-) which are stated to be doubtful of recovery .

14 Cash and bank Balance  As at As at 
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Balance with Banks  492,185.78              114,441.32               
   

Cash on Hand  389,247.12              779,237.14               
 

Total  881,432.90              893,678.46             

14.1 DISCLOSURE OF SBN DURING DENOMINATION PERIOD

SBN'S OTHER TOTAL
CLOSING CASH IN HAND AS ON 8TH NOVEMBER,2016 712,000.00                212,430.55                      924,430.55                 

-                              1,588,000.00                  1,588,000.00             
-                              386,163.00                      386,163.00                 

712,000.00                - 712,000.00                 
CLOSING CASH IN HAND AS ON 30TH DECEMBER,2016 NIL 1,414,267.55                    1,414,267.55             

15 Short Term Loans and Advances As at As at 
 ( Unsecured , Considered Good ) 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Loans to  Related parties 297,068.00              81,180.00                 
(without bearing interest)
Loans to Bodies Corporate -                          255,000.00               

TDS on Interest 7,755.81                 15,456.00                 

Deposits with Excise Authority 4,384.00                 3,277.00                   

Others 1,667,617.90           362,000.00               
Total 1,976,825.71           716,913.00             

16 Other Current assets As at As at 
  31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

   
Pre paid Expenses 1,302,634.93           98,036.00                 

Total 1,302,634.93           98,036.00               

* Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) means the bank notes of denominations of the existing series of the values of Five Hundred rupees and One Thousand 
rupees as defined under the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministiry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs no. S.O.3407(E), 
Dated the 8th November 2016.

Details of specified Bank Notes(SBN) held and transacted during the period 8th November, 2016 to 31st December, 2016 are provided in the table below:-

PARTICULAR

ADD-PERMITTED RECEIPT
LESS-PERMITED PAYMENT
LESS- AMOUNT DEPOSITED IN BANK



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Amount adjusted 
on Reversal of 

Revaluation 
Salvage value

Tangible Assts
Own assets
Land (Leasehold)
and Development 12,253,857.26       46,203,977.00      882,981.41       -                    59,340,815.67       -                            -                                -                              -                                -                         -                             -                                 59,340,815.67         58,457,834.26       

  
Factory Building 5,741,758.00         4,662,338.00        -                         -                    10,404,096.00       6,243,211.48        118,037.92            155,412.00               -                         -                             6,516,661.40            3,887,434.60           4,160,884.52         
Other Building 7,838,807.00         7,938,973.00        63,705.00         -                    15,841,485.00       7,220,016.40        79,521.60               132,316.00                -                             7,431,854.00            8,409,631.00           8,557,763.60         
Machinery** 23,653,748.31         712,306.33       -                    24,366,054.64       15,187,336.12       1,220,479.48         -                                -                         -                             16,407,815.60          7,958,239.04           8,466,412.19         
Electric Installation 2,543,380.00           -                         -                    2,543,380.00         1,873,776.00         65,972.00               -                                -                         -                             1,939,748.00            603,632.00              669,604.00            
Furniture & Fittings 249,260.00            -                             -                         -                    249,260.00            53,280.00             29,600.00               -                                -                             82,880.00                 166,380.00              195,980.00            
Computer 564,882.00            -                             -                         -                    564,882.00            512,134.00           22,432.00               -                                -                         -                             534,566.00               30,316.00                52,748.00               
Motors Vehicles** 8,232,882.00         -                             -                         - 8,232,882.00         5,022,268.00        398,900.00            -                         -                             5,421,168.00            2,811,714.00           3,210,614.00         
Tractor** 544,292.00            -                             -                         -                    544,292.00            111,917.00           34,472.00               -                                -                         -                             146,389.00               397,903.00              432,375.00            
Transformer 103,890.23            -                             -                         -                    103,890.23            36,189.00             6,580.00                 -                                -                         -                             42,769.00                 61,121.23                67,701.23               

    
61,726,756.80       58,805,288.00      -                            1,658,992.74    -                    122,191,037.54     36,260,128.00      -                                1,975,995.00         287,728.00               -                         -                             38,523,851.00          83,667,186.54         84,271,916.80       

           
Capital Work-in-Progress         -                                -                              
   83,667,186.54         84,271,916.80       

  
Previous Year 54,229,735.23       58,805,288.00      -                            7,497,021.57    -                    120,532,044.80     34,351,127.00      -                                1,621,273.00         287,728.00               -                         -                             36,260,128.00          84,271,916.80         

    
     

NOTE:       
      

9.3. **   
i) Machineries include Rs. 13,51,500/- (Previous year Rs.13,51,500/-) which are secured by hypothecation to a finance company against which the outstandings  as on 31.03.2017
are Rs.6,83,045/- (Previous year Rs. 6,19,004/-) including Rs. 302750/-in aggreagate of Overdue loan amount and interest thereon.  

\  

 

 

As on 31.03.2016As on 31.03.2017Cost as on 
31.03.2016 Addition Provided on Re-

Valued Assets
Deductions/Adjus

tment

9.4 Title deeds of the lease hold land of the Company 's  Tea Estate "Arcuttipore Tea Estate" are yet to be received by the said Central Bank of India, Kolkata through the intermeditary Messers ASREC (INDIA) LIMITED, 
Kolkata.

ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Note 9 - Fixed Assets  of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017
(Figures in Rs.)

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION

ii) Motor vehicles represents Rs.32,10,614/- (Previous year Rs.32,10,614/-) which are secured by hypothecation to a bank against which the outsatandings as on 31.03.2017
 are Rs.15,00,904.20/-( Previous year Rs.21,88,596/- )

NET BLOCK

As on 31.03.2017

9.1. All assets except motor vehicles have been revalued on 30.09.94 by an approved valuer and increase in value of these assets aggregating to Rs.5,88,05,288/- (net) on account of the same has been transferred to Revaluation 
Reserve Account. 

9.2. No Provision has been made for Amortisation of Leasehold Land. The Lease deed has expired and necessary application for renewal of the same is still pending before the Concerned Authorities.

Upto 31.03.2016 Provided during 
the year

Deductions/
Adjustment Upto 31.03.2017RevaluationParticulars



ARCUTTIPORE TEA COMPANY LIMITED

(Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.)
17 Revenue from Operations 2016-17 2015-16

Sale of Tea Made  (6,16,719.kgs Previous Year 3,23,199 Kgs)**** 66,559,128.53       34,383,964.50         

   
  

 
Total 66,559,128.53       34,383,964.50         

**** includes  Consignment  deemed sale of Rs 1,20,65,590/- for earlier year against which accounts sales
are yet to be received and on account of pending enactment of GST Act effective from 01.07.2017 

18 Other Income 2016-17 2015-16

Liabilities no longer required  written back**** 4,131,239.59         4,122,640.07           

Miscellaneuos Receipts 1,786,781.00         1,758,269.22           

Profit On Sale Of  Mutual Fund Unit 870.08                   

Interest On Security Deposits with Assam  Electricity Board 131,380.41            154,561.00              
( TDS Rs. 7756/- Previous Year Rs. 15456/-)

Interest on Income Tax Refund 90,456.00              -                           
Total 6,140,727.08         6,035,470.29           

**** includes this year , liability of interest payable on loan for the period  & of previous year and of Tax
deducted at source payable on interest, rent etc .

19 Cultivation Expenses 2016-17 2015-16

Crop Expenses 8,597,609.54         8,055,730.54           

Old Cultivation 5,358,038.27         3,296,843.23           

Rejuvenation 3,150.00                2,775.00                  

Replanting & Replacement 239,780.00            286,364.43              

Teak / Nursery/ Young Tea Expenses -                         152,185.00              

Total 14,198,577.81       11,793,898.20         

19.1 Subsidy on plantations amounting Rs. Nil  (Previous Year Rs. Nil/-) received  during the year has 
been adjusted from expeditures incurred on Old Cultivation account 
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20 Changes in Inventories 2016-17 2015-16

Inventories ( as on 31.03.2017)

Finished Goods - Tea ( 16,753 kgs Previous Year 1,55,243 kgs ) 2,014,355.00         16,934,948.00         
( Refer Note 12****)
Stock in Process -                         -                           

Stock in Trade - Shares ( 63,700 nos Previous year 63,700 nos) 3,585,000.00         3,585,000.00           

Sub Total 5,599,355.00         20,519,948.00         

Inventories (01.04.2016)

Finished Goods - Tea  (1,55,243 kgs  Previous Year 48,595kgs) 16,934,948.00       5,445,210.00           

Stock in Process -                         -                           

Stock in Trade - Shares ( 63,700 nos Previous year 63,700 nos) 3,585,000.00         3,585,000.00           

Sub Total 20,519,948.00       9,030,210.00           

Total 14,920,593.00       (11,489,738.00)        

21 Employees Benefits Expenses 2016-17 2015-16

Salary, Wages & Gratuity 10,989,453.34       8,358,112.78           

Contribution to Providend & Other funds 2,024,269.31         1,588,324.24           

Staff Welfare Expenses 1,338,283.94         1,091,238.07           

Loss on Food Stuffs 2,741,610.33         1,642,877.28           
 

Total 17,093,616.92       12,680,552.37         
  

22 Finance Costs 2016-17 2015-16

Interest To Financiers & Others 290,919.25            317,754.54              
  

Interest on Loans  ( Refer Note 22.1 ) 2,121,493.00         2,933,315.00           

Interest on Sales Loan 178,547.32            390,483.38              

Brokerage on Loan -                         6,530.00                  

Total 2,590,959.57         3,648,082.92           
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22.1 Rs.12,75,000/- being Interest on loan taken  from a Corporate body, for the year has not been accounted for .  

23 Depreciation 2016-17 2015-16

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2,263,723.00         1,909,001.00           

2,263,723.00         1,909,001.00           

Less : Transferred from Revaluation Reserve 287,728.00            287,728.00              

Total 1,975,995.00         1,621,273.00           

24 Other Expenses 2016-17 2015-16

Manufacturing Expenses
 
Cess on Green Leaf/ bought leaf  719,751.65            683,743.55              
 
Electricity Charges  231,352.30            180,869.80              

 
Land Rent  80,081.00              104,579.00              

Manufacturing expenses 10,662,960.23       10,681,722.91         

Machinery Hire Charges  100,000.00            100,000.00              

Mechanical Vehicles  1,345,188.79         1,668,911.83           

Repairs to Building  408,663.57            257,633.44              

Repairs to Machinery  816,496.36            646,906.08              

Stores Consumed at garden  650,073.46            

Establishment Expenses
 

Cess on Tea made  245,000.00            210,000.00              

Professional Fees  18,270.00              13,535.00                
 

General Charges  1,262,728.45         2,055,950.97           

Rent  606,000.00            606,000.00              

Insurance  57,001.00              62,223.00                

Subscription , Rates & Taxes  179,573.00            144,704.00              

Expenses on Sales  2,615,128.12         1,328,558.07           

Listing Fees to Exchanges / Registrar  350,403.00            393,920.00              
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Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  190,208.00            1,100,802.00           
(Including Foreign Travel expenses Rs.Nil
Previous year Rs 562420/-)

Vehicle Running Expenses  88,514.00              93,404.05                

Consultancy Charges  80,000.00              100,000.00              

Auditors' Remuneration
i) Audit Fee  37,000.00              30,000.00                
ii) Tax Audit Fee  10,000.00              8,000.00                  
iii) Other Charges  600.00                   -                           

Donations & Subscriptions  40,500.00              20,300.00                
 

Total 20,795,492.93       20,491,763.70         
  

25 Earnings Per Share 2016-17 2015-16

i) Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax (Rs.) (1,849,837.62)        860,729.10              
(as per statement of Profit & Loss account)

ii) Provisions for Income Tax  (Rs.) -                         161990.00

iii) Net Profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs.) (1,849,837.62)        698,739.10              

iv) Weighted average no of ordinary shares 5,016,380              5,016,380                

v) Basic & Diluted earnings per ordinary share (Rs.) (0.45) 0.14

vi) Face value per ordinary shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

66
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26) Information given in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard - 17 on Segment reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India: -
The Company has one primary business Segment having two divisions: -
i.      Tea Division
ii.     Trading Division including insurance service 
The Tea Division of the Company is engaged in the business of cultivation manufacturing,Sale of Tea & Green leaf. The Company's Trading Division is
engaged in purchase & sale of shares and service charges on insurance business.

Information about Business Segments :- Primary

 Particulars
2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16

(Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.)
1. Revenue

External Sales 66,559,128.53            34,383,964.50            -                    -                  66,559,128.53              34,383,964.50            
Internal Segment Sales -                              -
Other Income 6,140,727.08             6,035,470.29              -                    -                  6,140,727.08                6,035,470.29              
Unallocated  Income -                    -                  -                              -                            
Total Revenue 72,699,855.61            40,419,434.79            -                    -                  72,699,855.61              40,419,434.79            

2. Results
Segment Results (519,285.54)               4,354,251.02              -                    -                  (519,285.54)                  4,354,251.02              
Unallocable Income/(Loss) net of Expenses -                            -                            -                    -                  -                              -                            
Operating Profit (519,285.54)               4,354,251.02              -                    -                  (519,285.54)                  4,354,251.02              
Interest Expenses (2,590,959.57)            (3,648,082.92)             -                    -                  (2,590,959.57)               (3,648,082.92)             
Interest Income 221,836.41                154,561.00                 -                    -                  221,836.41                   154,561.00                 
Profit from Ordinary Activities (1,849,837.62)            860,729.10                 -                    -                  (2,888,408.70)               860,729.10                 
Extra Ordinary Loss -                            -                            
     Irrecoverable Expenses W/Off -                            -                            -                    -                  -                              -                            
Net Profit/(Loss) (1,849,837.62)            860,729.10                 -                    -                  (1,849,837.62)               860,729.10                 

3. Other Information
Segment Assets 100,425,662.40          113,450,379.98          8,085,000.00      8,105,000.00    108,510,662.40            121,555,379.98           
Unallocable Corp.Assets    1,288,369.81                6,068,406.00              
Total Assets  109,799,032.21            127,623,785.98           
Segment Liability 158,917,259.06          158,917,259.06          -                    -                  146,892,659.89            158,917,259.06           
Reserve & Surplus (net) (38,124,940.68)             (35,438,528.08)           
Unallocable Corp. Liability  1,031,313.00                4,145,055.00              
Total Liability -                  109,799,032.21            127,623,785.98           
Capital Expenditure 1,658,992.74             6,231,771.57              -                    -                  1,658,992.74                6,231,771.57              
Depreciation 1,975,995.00             1,621,273.00              -                    -                  1,975,995.00                1,621,273.00              
Non Cash Expenses other than depreciation -                            -                            -                    -                  -                              -                            

  

TotalTea Division Trading Division
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27) Related Party disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Accounting Standard
 - 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are given as below:-

A) List of Related Parties
i) Parties where control exists - none
ii) Associated Concern: -

a) Deeleep (India) Grains Private Limited
b) Pusha Steels Limited
c) Fastrack Realestate Consultant Pvt Ltd .
d) Devesh Trade Credit Pvt.Ltd.

iii) Key Management personnels and Relatives
a) Mr. H.K.Bajoria (Managing Director)
b) Mr. Shalakya Bajoria (Director, Relative of Managing Director)
c) Mr.Naresh Shah (Director,)
d) Mr.Chandi Prasad Poddar (Director,)
e) Smt. Pramila Bajoria ( Director , Relative of (a) &( b) 
f) Harsh Kumar Bajoria (HUF)- Represented By karta H.K.Bajoria , Director 
g) Shakalaya Bajoria (HUF)  Represented by Karta S.K.Bajoria , Director 

iv) Enterprises over which key management personnels and relatives have significant influence.
a) Star Textiles & Industries Ltd.
  

B) Transactions with related parties :

Sl. Nature of Transactions Key Management Enterprise Over
No Personnels & Relatives which Key

Management Associate
Personnels and
Relatives have

Significant
influence

(Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.)
 Hire Charges paid 

Pusha Steels Limited 100,000.00                   

Advance Given Refunded
Deeleep (India) Grains Pvt. Ltd. 100,000.00                   

Advances Taken
Deeleep India Grains Pvt. Ltd. 40,000.00                     
Devesh Trade Credit Pvt.Ltd. 140,000.00                   
Pusha Steels Limited 273,000.00                           
Harsh Kumar Bajoria 10,586,543.29                     
Shalakya Bajorai 2,614,995.47                       
Shalakya Bajorai HUF 100,000.00                          

Advances taken Refunded
Devesh Trade Credit Pvt.Ltd. 379,388.00                   
Pusha Steels Limited 649,500.00                          
Harsh Kumar Bajoria HUF 471,543.29                          
Harsh Kumar Bajoria 12,838,876.29                     
Shalakya Bajorai 3,541,667.47                       
Shalakya Bajorai HUF 29,995.47                            

Advances given Outstanding
Fastrack Realestate Consultant Pvt Ltd 20,680.00                     
Deeleep India Grains Pvt. Ltd. 290,000.00                   
Star Industries Limited 60,500.00                     
Pusha Steels Limited 76,500.00                     
Devesh Trade Credit Pvt.Ltd. 139,388.00                   

Advance Taken Outstanding/ Creditors 
Shalakya Bajorai HUF 315,004.53                          
Harsh Kumar Bajoria HUF 793,456.71                          
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28) Confirmations for Credit and Debit balances including Secured Loans and Unsecured Loans, Sundry
Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Advances received from customers, loans and advances are to be obtained.
Necessary consequential adjustments will be made as and when ascertained.

29) Unprovided estimated gratuity liability  Rs. 8,71,534/- (previous year Rs.7,20,523/-) for the year and the 
total unprovided gratuity upto as on 31.03.2017, as extimated by the  Management, amounts to Rs.1,72,81,076.13/-
(net of advances)  (previous year Rs.1,52.14,923.25/-) including in respect of employees retired till 31.03.2017. 
The  company has paid gratuity of Rs.3,95,955/-  to its employees during the year and the same has been
charged to this statement of Profit and Loss. Moreover, the company has paid Rs.8,49,800/- (previous
year Rs 8,49,550/-)  up to 31.03.2017 to the retired employees on account 
against their  gratuity dues and the same  are  shown as advances at the year -end. 

30) Contingent Liabilies not provided in respect of :- 2016-17 2015-16
(Figures in Rs.) (Figures in Rs.)

i) Enhanced tax payable under Assam
Land revenue Re-Assessment
(Amendment) act, 1990 Nil Nil
 

31) Income & Expenditure in Foreign Currency: -
 Travelling Expenses in Foreign Currency, Nil Rs. 5,51,300/-
   

32) Other information :

Rs. Rs.
A. Production of :

Green Lraf Plucked from Kgs
Own Garden  1,925,369 -                                     1,953,553 -                                

` Bought Leaf  183,490 45,252
Tea made  440932 430599
Tea made on Bought Leaf 37,587 9308

(As Certified by the management)
   

B. Turnover : Kgs Kgs
Green Leaf  - sold            -                                      -                                     -                                      -                                
Tea made-sold 616719 66,559,128.53                   323,199                              34,383,964.50              
Traded Tea-sold -                                      -                                     -                                      -                                

 

2016-17 2015-16
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C. Stock of Traded Goods
Stock Of Tea
Opening Stock (kgs) 158,543                               16,934,948                        48,595                                5,445,210                     

 Tea made**** 474929  433147  
Sold during the year 616719 66,559,129                        323199 34,383,965                   
Closing Stock (Nos.) 16,753                                 16,934,948                        158,543                              16,934,948                   

 
Stock Of Shares Nos Nos
Opening Stock (Nos.) 63,700 3,585,000                          63,700 3,585,000                     
Purchase during the year -                                      -                                     -                                      -                                
Sold during the year -                                      -                                     -                                      -                                
Closing Stock (Nos.) 63700 3,585,000                          63700 3,585,000                     

32.1) In Tea Industry, value of Green Leaf Produced in Company's Own estate is not ascertainable
Since Production involves an integrated process of growing and cultivation.  

**** Excluding Complementary Kgs of tea 3,590  to staff (Previous year 2760 kgs )  
   

For GORA & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants

 
8/2, Kiran Shankar Roy Road Gora Chand Mukherjee
Kolkata. (Partner)
30.05.2017 Membership No. 17630
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